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AGENCY 
OVERVIEW 
Executive Summary 
Governing Council Report 

As predicted in the last year's 
Annual Report, 2015 was a 
challenging year for the Pilbara 
Institute. The principal challenge 

of reducing demand for training is directly reflective of the 
cyclic nature of the resources and support industries in the 
Pilbara region. 

The positive manner of how the Pilbara Institute has 
responded to these challenges is testament to the leadership 
of the Managing Director, Ms Marlene Boundy and her senior 
executive and the excellent and diligent performance of all 
employees across the region.  

Having reshaped the Pilbara Institute to reflect the current 
local training demand in the Pilbara we will continue to 
actively pursue business growth opportunities. This may 
require innovative methods of delivering the training for the 
future clientele but the high quality training which the Pilbara 
Institute is known for will be maintained. 

We amended targets, adjusted financial plans and continued 
to provide training to employers and communities.   

The student cohorts were different at campuses and meeting 
the client demand has been a challenge.  At the same time, 
the consolidation of campuses and the relocation of remote 
and rural staff to the major delivery sites of Pundulmurra and 
Karratha occurred throughout the year. 

From a Governing Council perspective there was a change in 
the composition of the governing council with a new chair 
being appointed and 2 new members joining.  My sincere 
appreciation goes to the outgoing chair Ms Nicole Roocke and 
member Kirk Lenton for their contribution in prior years. 

Ian Smith 
Governing Council Chairperson 
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Newly built Karratha Industry Skills Centre 
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AGENCY OVERVIEW 
Managing Director’s Report 

2015 was a year of change. 

We commenced the year with the 
implementation of a new organisational 
structure. The challenge we faced was to 
match the structure with the demand for 
training.  It was an eventful period with 
Executive working towards bedding down a 
structure which would enable us to 
continue to meet the needs of training 

across the Pilbara region.  At the same time, efficiencies were 
introduced enabling the Institute to operate within budget.  

We continued to review and implement systems that 
streamlined business operations along with updating and 
rewriting procedures and processes.  We were dealing with a 
downturn in workforce training and development where 
employers were making choices about their workforce 
resulting in minimal commencements for apprenticeship 
training.  It was a turbulent time for all organisations, 
businesses and agencies.  Pilbara Institute was in the thick of 
it.   

To ensure that the Institute remained a viable provider of 
training across the Pilbara, further strategies were introduced 
so that we could remain the provider of choice across the 
region. 

Fiscal management was required, with us addressing the risks 
associated with making further changes to the structure.  It 
was a time to manage within budget.  My compliments go to 
all my staff in their willingness to make further changes 
resulting in efficiencies to ensure that we could operate the 
business of training and training services within our means.    

This work was done diligently whilst we served our clients, 
employers and students with minimal disruption to their study 
programs.  Our Student Satisfaction rating highlights the fact 
that students value the Institute’s services.  According to the 
National Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) 
Pilbara Institute is rated 2.2% above the State average.   

 We strived to make a difference to everyone’s lives.  We 
worked to ensure that pathways to learning occurred, that 
upskilling enabled existing workers to improve their status 
within their organisations and importantly, ensured that 
Pilbara Institute was a well-recognised and a reputable 
member of the Pilbara community.   339 school students 
across the Pilbara region were enrolled with Pilbara Institute 
with 2 High Schools in 2015 achieving results that placed 
them into the top 50 schools across Western Australia.  We 
also celebrated our students on the State stage at the 
Worldskills Competition.  Pilbara Institute has made a 
difference to these young people’s lives.   

Partnerships with other State Training providers have given us 
opportunities to expand delivery options for students.  Sharing 
of resources, tools, systems etc., have enabled efficiencies to 
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AGENCY OVERVIEW 
be achieved as we have adopted “systems” rather than 
investing into development.  Our partnerships with local 
councils, government agencies including schools and 
employers allow us to share information including access to 
facilities.   Partnerships with the Higher Education sector 
enable pathways to further education for our students these 
being with Curtin University in South Hedland and Central 
Queensland University in Karratha.  Partnerships in the 
regions are essential as they enable members of the 

community to study locally rather than relocating to a 
city.  Pilbara Institute is proud to be associated with all its 
partners.    

In May, Governing Council met at Pundulmurra Campus to 
Launch the Strategic Plan.  We celebrated the Launch with a 
community, industry and staff lunch.  During the year, we 
reviewed our Strategic Priorities in light of the changes to the 
economy and revised our values and key objectives.   In June, 
we farewelled our Governing Council Chair, Ms Nicole 

Roocke and Council member, Kirk 
Lenton.  Nicole and Kirk served on 
council for 4 and 8 years respectively 
and it was a time of growth and 
excitement.  On behalf of everyone at 
Pilbara Institute, I thank Nicole and Kirk 
for their leadership during this dynamic 
period of Pilbara Institute.  Incoming 
Chair person, Ian Smith was welcomed 
in July along with two new Council 
members Karen Jamvold and Sarah 
Kemp.  They joined Governing Council at 
a very challenging time where 
projections were looking dire and 
demand for training had declined. 

July to December was a period of hard 
work for everyone, analysing financials, 
scrutinising processes and procedures 

Hedland staff at Pundulmurra for Strategic Plan launch 
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AGENCY OVERVIEW 
and working towards operating within budget.  The Institute’s 
focus was ensuring that students received the best possible 
training experience they could, culminating in the achievement 
of the outcomes.  Our staff worked with employers to upskill 
employees, Security and Safety training including high risk 
was an essential element of training offered across the region. 

In September we celebrated the Opening of the Industry Skills 
Centre at Karratha Campus. The Hon Terry Redman (Minister 
for Regional Development; Lands) opened the centre and was 
joined by members of the community including Mayor Peter 
Long, A/CEO Terry Hill, industry, Governing Council and 
staff.  Welcome to Country was performed by Traditional 
Owner Josie Samson, from Ngarluma Aboriginal Corporation.  
We had students from Fortescue Metals Group (FMG) on site 
who were undergoing training and gave a real “live viewing” to 
guests as they were assessed on the job.  In November, 

construction commenced on the Health and Community 
Services Training Centre (HCSTC) in Pundulmurra.  A very 
exciting time for Pilbara Institute staff and the community as 
new buildings change the landscape of our campuses. These 
facilities have been funded through Royalties for Regions and 
will offer state of the art training facilities for our students, 
employers and members of our community. 

2015 may have been a year of great change.  Thank you to all 
our staff who turned our vision into a reality.  It was a great 
sense of achievement for all staff at the end of the year, to 
know that we had achieved our targets.  Every one of us has 
contributed to this outcome. 

Marlene Boundy 
Managing Director
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History of the Institute 

It is impossible to write about the Pilbara without describing 
the landscape.  It is “a land of Sweeping Plains”.  It is an 
environment which is inhospitable yet majestic with vast plains 
incredible gorges and an astonishing abundance of mineral 
wealth.   It is a unique place steeped in Aboriginal history, 
heritage and culture which is particularly vibrant and still 
influences the way in which the region is developed and 
managed. 

There is also the history of the Pilbara as a pioneering frontier.  
It is a story of unparalleled investment where billions of dollars 
shape global forecasts and both national and international 
companies out-bid each other in a voracious quest for its 
riches.  The Pilbara resonates with diversity and 
contradictions and its future development has the potential to 
impact the entire planet.  The Pilbara is often described as the 
“engine room of the nation” because of its significant 
contribution to Australia’s national wealth. 

Pilbara Institute was established after amalgamating several 
existing colleges in the Pilbara region.  In 1969 the 
Commonwealth Government established Pundulmurra 
Vocational Training Centre, an Aboriginal training facility in 
South Hedland.  In 1973, the Centre began offering VET 
courses. In 1990, Pundulmurra took over the administration of 
the Roebourne Education Centre, then, in 1993, Pundulmurra 

became an Independent College under the Colleges Act 
specialising in post-secondary and VET level courses.   
In 1980, Karratha and Hedland Colleges were established as 
community colleges to service their surrounding areas.  It 
wasn’t until 1997 that these Colleges became Statutory 
Authorities under the Vocational Education and Training Act 
1996, each with a Governing Council to perform the functions 
of the college (including employing and paying staff) and to 
govern its operations. 

In 1996, Pundulmurra became a Special Aboriginal 
Agricultural College delivering customised courses.  
Pundulmurra College amalgamated with Hedland College in 
1998.  These became the South Hedland and Pundulmurra 
Campuses of the Eastern Pilbara College of TAFE in 2000.  
Eastern Pilbara College of TAFE and West Pilbara College of 
TAFE (Karratha) amalgamated in January 2003 to form 
Pilbara TAFE which was renamed Pilbara Institute in 2011. 

Pilbara Institute is the largest provider across the region but 
there is fierce competition from a range of private providers.  
Managing the business of training and ensuring a sustainable 
and viable service into the future has been the challenge.  
Partnerships with community agencies, industry and private 
organisations have been key strategies over the past 12 
months.  By working together, partnering with local 
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businesses and training local we have seen the community 
strengthen its connections across all sectors both 
Government and private.  

The West Australian Government through the Royalties for 
Regions funding has supported Pilbara Institute with major 
investments such as the HCSTC in Pundulmurra which will 
offer training to students in all facets of health, nursing and 
allied services.  Construction commenced in late 2015.  At 
Karratha campus the Industry Skills Centre offers training in 
all areas of high risk, elevated work platform etc. and was 
opened in September 2015.  

 
Newman Campus 

Karratha Campus 

Roebourne Campus 

South Hedland Campus 

Pundulmurra Campus
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Operational Overview 
Scope of Delivery 

The training products offered by Pilbara Institute ranged from 
entry level certificates through to Advanced Diplomas.  The 
Institute offered community capacity-building programs such 
as work ready and return to work, literacy and numeracy as 
well as customised programs for industry and employers. The 
delivery styles varied to meet the needs of students and our 
clients, for example classes are held face to face or on the 
job. Other flexible options include e-learning and flexible-
based learning   Pilbara Institute was scoped to deliver 100 
qualifications across 33 different Industry areas to support 
workforce development across a range of skill sets.  Refer 
Key Performance Indicators p 42. 

Business after Hours
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Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 

Pilbara Institute (PI) is a State Training Provider contracted by 
the Department of Training and Workforce Development to 
provide services that contribute to the successful delivery of a 
quality workforce and develop strategies and training 
programs aligned to the State Training Plan. 

The Institute’s aim was to meet the training priority, certificate 
level, and occupational group assigned to the qualification 
targets set out in the DPA.  

The State Training Priorities are developed through extensive 
consultation, validation, feedback and negotiation with 
stakeholders throughout Western Australia, including industry 
and enterprises; Industry Training Advisory groups; Regional 
and community organisations; Equity groups; Training 
providers; and Government agencies.  

Industry (Non-Profile Activities) 

We maintained key relationships with industry groups such as 
the major resource companies of Woodside, FMG, Rio Tinto 
and BHP Billiton.  Business was also conducted with 
government agencies, community organisations and 
Aboriginal corporations to meet the local needs of 
communities. 

The Institute is a major contributor to the Pilbara’s economy 
by working and liaising with industry, employers and 
community organisations.  

Directorates 

Pilbara Institute operated three directorates to deliver training 
services across the region. 

Training and Institute Services 

The Directorate of Institute and Training Services provided 
services and support functions such as planning, governance, 
customer – client services, information technology, quality and 
facilities including responsibility for the delivery of training in 
the Health and Community Services areas across the Pilbara 
region.  
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Training and Commercial Operations 

The Directorate Training and Commercial Operations 
delivered training in the apprenticeship, trades, pre-
employment, safety, and management and transport 
disciplines.  The Directorate also provided support services to 
Aboriginal students enrolled in training.  Commercial activity 
involved individualised and customised training to meet 

industry needs including a variety of short course offerings 
such as computer training and snake handling.  

Office of the Managing Director 

The Directorate provided the service and support functions of 
finance and human resources for the Institute. 

Pilbara Institute Management Group with the Governing Council Chair, 
Ian Smith and Deputy Chair John Lally. 
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Partnerships 

PI had a focus during 2015 of working with others.  
Formal partnerships were established to ensure that a 
range of services both administrative and training 
could be offered to members of the community.  

Partnerships are essential in rural and remote regions 
and working to fully utilise resources across the sector 
allows opportunities for sharing and learning 
education and administrative work practices including 
efficiencies in whole of Institute operations. 

Formal arrangements exist with South West Institute 
of Technology (SWIT) and Kimberley Training 
Institute (KTI).  At SWIT, resources and information is 
shared.  SWIT and PI share the services of a 
Marketing Manager and PI is supported with 
assistance in reports and data collection. 

At KTI collaboration occurred both in training and 
support services.  As a result of this partnership, 
hairdressing is offered across the two regions by 
sharing the resources of the Hair & Beauty lecturer.  

The aim has been to minimise the duplication of effort 
by all staff in the reconfiguration, modifying and 

developing of monitoring tools.  I sincerely thank my 
colleagues across the sector for their genuine 
collaboration.  

In the Higher Education arena, we have formal 
arrangements in place with Curtin University for the 
delivery of the Bachelor of Nursing degree.  Students 
are supported at the South Hedland campus and in 
Karratha there is a learning HUB established enabling 
students enrolled with Central Queensland University 
to access a learning space with CQU lecturers linking 
electronically.  

The Australian Apprenticeship Centre Network is 
accommodated on campus at Karratha Campus 
providing a coordinated service to intended clients 
such as employers and prospective students.  The 
Karratha precinct is very much about a learning and 
training facility aimed at meeting the local needs of 
the region. 

The Institute worked collaboratively with the 
Department of Training & Workforce Development 
(DTWD) with the establishment of a trial project to 
support the financial functions performed by the 
Institute’s Financial Services team.  
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Electrical Apprentices learning skills to meet local needs The Central Queensland University Associate Vice Chancellor, Professor Trevor 
Davison, Mayor Peter Long with Managing Director, Marlene Boundy.
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During 2015, decommissioning of 2 campuses occurred (Newman and Tom Price) with all client services enquiries being managed 
through 2 Administration Hubs (Karratha and Pundulmurra).
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Governing Council 
The Institute’s Governing Council is constituted under 
Vocational Education and Training Act 1996. The role, 
structure and responsibilities of the Governing Council are 
detailed in the State Training Provider Governing Council 
Handbook published by the Department of Training and 
Workforce Development. 

Under the terms of the Vocational Education and Training Act 
(1996) the Governing Council is the governing body of the 
Institute with authority in the name of the Institute to perform 
the functions of the Institute and govern its operations and 
affairs. 

Functions of Governing Council 

Governing Council ensures appropriate structures, policies 
and procedures are in place in order to ensure that the 
following functions are satisfactorily implemented. 

• Prepare an `Institute Training Profile' as the basis for
the Institute's planned provision of vocational education
and training for the approval of the Minister as and
when required by the Minister.

• Develop and implement strategic and management
plans for the institute.

• Ensure the Institute courses, programs and services
are responsive to, and meet the needs of, students,
industry and the community.

• Ensure that the Institute's commitments under its
Resource Agreement and any other contractual
arrangements are met.

Membership 

Chairperson Nicole Roocke/Ian Smith 

Deputy Chairperson  John Lally 

Managing Director   Marlene Boundy 

Member Damien Ardagh 

Member Darren Lundberg 

Member Sharon Viles 

Member Tony Evans 

Member Kylie Bosich 

Member Kirk Lenton/Karen Jamvold 

Member Sarah Kemp
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Governance Structure 
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Relevant Legislation 

In the performance of its functions, Pilbara Institute complies with the following relevant written laws: 

• Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2005
• Acts Amendment (Higher School Leaving Age and Related

Provisions) Act 2005
• Auditor General Act 2006
• Children and Community Services Act 2004
• Competition and Consumer Act 2010
• Copyright Amendment (Digital Agenda) Act 2000
• Corporations Act 2001
• Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003
• Criminal Code Act 1995
• Disability Discrimination Act 1992
• Disability Services Act 1993
• Electronic Transactions Act 2011
• Employment Dispute Resolutions Act 2008
• Employment, Education and Training Amendment Act 2000
• Equal Opportunity Act 1984
• Financial Management Act 2006
• Financial Management and Accountability Amendment Act 2000
• Freedom of Information Act 1992
• Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986
• Immigration (Education) Charge Act 1992
• Income Tax Assessment Act 1997
• Industrial Relations and Other Legislation Amendment Act 1995
• Labour Relations Reform Act 2002
• Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951
• Limitation Act 2005

• Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
• Mutual Recognition Act 1992
• National Vocational Education and Training Regulator Act 2011
• Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
• Privacy Act 1988
• Public and Bank Holidays Act 1972
• Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
• Public Sector Management Act 1994
• Racial Discrimination Act 1975
• Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
• School Education Act 1999
• Skilling Australia’s Workforce Act 2005
• SPAM Act 2003
• State Records Act 2000
• State Superannuation Act 2000
• State Supply Commission Act 1991
• Trade Practices Act 1974-1975
• Training Legislation Amendment and Repeal Act 2008
• Vocational Education and Training Act 1996
• Vocational Education and Training (General) Regulations 2009
• Western Australia Public Sector Code of Ethics 2008
• Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981
• Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004
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Organisational Structure 
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Strategic Plan 2015 - 2018 

Vision  Skilling the Pilbara workforce – transforming individuals and organisations to achieve their full potential  

Mission To build a vibrant and sustainable community through engagement, innovative learning and participation 

Values  Our people are our greatest strength and we value: Respect; Accountability; Leadership and Integrity.  
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Build Networks and Partnerships – Strategic Priority One
Industry and Community Relationships  

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

Pilbara Institute has worked to support training delivery in 
partnership with other key stakeholders and the community to 
ensure training demands are met.  

Pilbara Institute, in partnership with Fortescue Metals Group 
(FMG) trained Indigenous people to gain work readiness skills 
enabling them to be fit for work with FMG.  Every year, 
candidates are selected by FMG to undertake a work readiness 
program designed to enable a pathway to employment with 
FMG. Training programs like this changes lives for ever and we 
are proud to be associated with FMG and other partners to 
make a difference to the lives of these students.  Real jobs are 
the ultimate goal for these students.  Training occurs at the 
Minurmaghali Mia and Pundulmurra Campuses throughout the 
year. 

Meeting the needs of remote communities in partnership with 
other key government agencies was a focus in 2015 to increase 
participation and completion rates for students engaged in 
training.  Examples have been partnering with local community 
members at Yandiyarra to enable a range of skills enabling 
community members to construct shelters and work benches for 
their community.  

Achievement 

Capacity Building with partnerships established (working 
collaboratively to achieve local solutions for the community). 
Examples are:- 

• BHP, FMG, Rio Tinto, Woodside, Chevron, Downer
• Commonwealth and State Governments
• Aboriginal Corporations
• Curtin University
• CQU
• Empowering People In Communities (EPIC)
• Apprenticeship Centres (MEGT and Busy at work)
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Aboriginal Training 

Achievement 
Skilling the Aboriginal Workforce 

• The Aboriginal Education Employment and Training
committee (AEETC) met in 2015 to provide
leadership and actively participate in the decision
making for the Institute’s Aboriginal Programs, and
the implementation and monitoring of the Aboriginal
Training Plan.

• Pilbara Institutes’ Aboriginal Services Unit provides
support to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
students enrolled at the Institute.

• The Aboriginal Development Officers (ADO’s) consult
with individuals, communities and industry throughout

the Pilbara region to identify vocational education, 
training and employment needs locally and in remote 
communities which includes mentoring, classroom 
and community delivery support, assisting students 
through the enrolment process including fee payment 
options.  

We increased enrolments of ATSI students by 6% in 2015 
compared to 2014.   

Carpentry Student Roebourne 
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Working Smarter – Strategic Priority Two
Business Success 

Pilbara Institute sought new ways to improve the business 
operations and effectiveness of services. The changing 
environment in the Pilbara, the changes in customer 
expectations, the decline in training demand and the 
adjustments made to staffing have been the driving force in 
“working smarter”.  The year has been one of matching the 
business structure to the actual demand for training. 

In 2015, there were significant changes to the way the 
business operated including:- 

Achievement 

Systems and Procedures including process was the focus 
enabling all tasks and functions to be reviewed to ensure that 
the Institute reduced or decreased the duplication of effort in 
all areas of the business.  

The focus was on the development of systems and reporting 
tools, including booking systems so that accurate and relevant 
information was available to all staff. For example:- 

From a Governance perspective:- 
• Development and implementation of a new Risk

Management system to replace Risk Base.
• Review of the Institute’s Strategic and Operational

risks.
• Developed and implemented a new Governance and

Accountability Framework.

From an Operational perspective:- 
• An information management campaign to embed a

quality Recordkeeping Management System using
TRIM and MOODLE including the development of a
Records Management Manual and Policy.

• Development of a “Policy Corner” on the Institute’s
Intranet home page for information to all staff on
recent changes on policy & procedures.

• Development and implementation of the Pilbara
Institute Profiling (PIP) tool enabling accurate
monitoring of student enrolments and resulting of
students’ work.

• Development of a team site on the PI intranet to
enable lecturer’s access to information for quality
purposes, audit requirements and reporting (Lecturer
Portal) and for implementation in the 2016 Training
year.
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Demolition of the Walkington Theatre

• Reviewed the system and procedures for reporting
student data for National reporting purposes
(AVETMISS questionnaire) enabling a decrease in
audit errors compared to previous years.

At the same time as we managed the operations of the 
business, we were faced with the relocation of staff from 
remote campuses.  In the process we:- 

• Transitioned services including accommodation of
staff to two major sites (Karratha and Pundulmurra).

• Remodelled the delivery of training services at
remote campuses (Newman and Tom Price).

• Worked with DTWD to complete the Royalties for
Regions funded initiative (Karratha Industry Skills
Centre).

• Demolished the Walkington Theatre.

Policies, procedures were reviewed and updated to meet the 
Office of the Auditor General’s requirements including the 
finalising of all OAG findings from the 2013 & 2014 Audit 
Reviews. Occupational Health & Safety systems were 
reviewed and new systems implemented to ensure 
compliance. 

We conducted organization-wide critical risk and emergency 
risk assessments and implemented corrective actions to 
minimise the risks identified. 

Develop Our People 

The Pilbara Institute Career Management Framework provides 
all staff with a process, capability documents and tools to clarify 
work priorities, discuss career aspirations, and plan professional 
development. Examples of all staff professional development in 
2015 was: 

• How to Have Difficult Conversations
• Disability Awareness
• OSH management system
• Record Awareness Training (RAT) Online
• PI Values and behaviour
• Accountable and Ethical Decision Making on-line

training
• TAE completions
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Values and Behaviour Team 2015
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Performance Management Framework 
Mapping between the State Government Goals, the strategies contained within Training WA: Planning for the Future 2009 -2018 and the Pilbara Institute Business Plan 2015. 

STATE GOVERNMENT GOALS: 
Focus on building, attracting and retaining a skilled workforce to meet the economic needs of Western Australia 

Training WA: Planning for the Future 2009 – 2018 
Increase the skills and participation of all Western Australians in the workforce and in the community, driven by a flexible and innovative 

training system 
A skilled 
workforce 

A contemporary 
apprenticeship 
system 

Individual participation in training Support for 
regional 
communities 

A vibrant and diverse 
training market 

Training system 
capability and capacity 

Pilbara Institute Strategic Plan 
Mission: Skilling the Pilbara workforce – transforming individuals and organisations to achieve their full potential 

Build networks and partnerships 
to support economic prosperity Working Smarter Contribute to and support the economic and social 

growth of the Pilbara region 

Pilbara Institute Business Plan 2015.  
Reposition the college within the market place: 9 priorities 

Strategies 
to Improve 

Engage 
Stakeholders 

Partners and 
Shared Models of 
Services & Delivery 

Build and 
Sustain 
Industry and 
Community 
Relationship 

Develop our 
People 

Provide 
Quality 
Training & 
Assessment 

Increase 
Commercial 
Revenue 

Manage 
Risk 

Business 
Success 

BUSINESS TEAM OPERATIONAL PLANS 
Directorate Training and 
Commercial Operations 

Directorate Training and Institute Services Managing Directorate 

Pre-Employment Safety 
Management & Transport Property and Facilities Customer Service and 

Support Financial and Contract Services 

Apprenticeships and Trades Information Technology 
Services 

Quality Planning and 
Governance Human Resources 

Aboriginal Development and 
Support Health and Community Services 
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Performance Measures 
Pilbara Institute provides services to a wide range of stakeholders across the Pilbara and aligns its efforts to the state and national 
training priorities. 

PILBARA INSTITUTE OUTCOME HIGHLIGHTS 

   4.6%
Number of People 

employed in first full-
time job after training 

84.7%
Number in 

employment 

91.7%
Students recommend 
Pilbara Institute as a 

Training Provider 

721
Number of 
students 

graduated in 
2015 

3,295
Number of 

enrolments in 
2015 

329 
Enrolments in 

Priority 
Training 

318 
Number of 
apprentice 

and trainees 

1,593  
Aboriginal students 

enrolled in training in 
2015 

343
Number of student 

enrolled in Foundation 
Skills and General 

Education 

83.8%  
Students with a 

disability employed 
after training 
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Training Delivery Ceilings 
VETiS Training Delivery 

Our targeted partnership with schools, which centred upon 
defined pathways, has continued to be in great demand. 
Three hundred and twenty-nine students enrolled into 
fourteen VETiS courses in 2015. 

The Certificate II in Engineering remained popular followed by 
Certificate II in Business and Certificate II in 
Electrotechnology. 

QUALIFICATION NUMBER 
OF 

STUDENTS 
CERTIFICATE I IN INDUSTRIAL SKILLS (ENTRY LEVEL 
TRAINING) 

25 

CERTIFICATE II IN AUTOMOTIVE VOCATIONAL 
PREPARATION 

30 

CERTIFICATE II IN BUSINESS 50 
CERTIFICATE II IN COMMUNITY SERVICES 20 
CERTIFICATE II IN CONSTRUCTION PATHWAYS 31 
CERTIFICATE II IN ELECTROTECHNOLOGY (CAREER 
START) 

43 

CERTIFICATE II IN ENGINEERING 94 
CERTIFICATE II IN HOSPITALITY 6 
CERTIFICATE II IN KITCHEN OPERATIONS 13 
CERTIFICATE II IN RETAIL MAKE-UP AND SKIN CARE 12 
CERTIFICATE II IN SECURITY OPERATIONS 3 
CERTIFICATE II IN VISUAL ARTS 2 
CERTIFICATE II IN WAREHOUSING OPERATIONS 8 
CERTIFICATE IV IN DISABILITY 2 

Seven schools participated in programs delivered on Pilbara 
Institute campuses 

SCHOOL SUM OF TOTAL 
STUDENTS 

HEDLAND SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL 106 
KARRATHA SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL 107 
NEWMAN SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL 30 
ONSLOW PRIMARY SCHOOL 2 
ROEBOURNE DISTRICT HIGH SCHOOL 25 
ST LUKE'S COLLEGE 45 
TOM PRICE SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL 24 
TOTAL 339 

VETiS Business Class Karratha 
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VETiS 

RPL Achievement 

Foundation Skills and General Education 

0
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40,000

60,000

80,000

SCH

RPL Achievement 

2013

2014

2015

60,000

65,000

70,000

75,000

2014 2015

Foundation Skills and General 
Education 

O = Other  P = Pre-apprentice  T = Trainees 
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Economic and Social Growth of the Pilbara – Strategic Priority Three 
Provide Quality Training & Assessment

329 
13.73% of 

publicly 
funded 

students 
   22.2% 

15-19 years 

27.6% 
20-29 years 

23.0%  
30-39 years 

9.0% 
40-45 years 

18.7% 

45+ years 

 

Certificate III in Electrotechnology 

Certificate III in Engineering/Mechanical 

Top five industries for students 
enrolled in Priority Industry Training 

Pilbara Institute Benchmarks for Training Priority Areas 2015 

Age groups of people undertaking 
training (DPA Target) 
15-24 years   104% of target
Target: 164,060 SCH.     
Achieved: 172,148 SCH 

People who undertook Priority 
Industry Training  
Target: 86,086 SCH.        98% of target
Achieved: 84,599 SCH

329 
13.73% of 

publicly 
funded 

students 

22.2% 
15 – 19 years 
 

27.6% 
20 -20 years 
 

23.0% 
30 -39 years 
 

9.0% 
40 -45 years 
 

18.7% 

45+ years 

Employment Based Training 
Target: 79,218 SCH.      102% of target
Achieved: 81,058 SCH 

Top five industries for students 
enrolled in Priority Industry Training 
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National Partnership on Skills Reform Student Demographic Response Rates 

Certificate III and above 
  
Qualification Completion Target 443  2015 
    
Cert III + 407 

 
Regional and Remote Certificate III and above 
  
Qualification Completion Target 425 2015 
  
Regional Cert III+ 284 

Aboriginal Certificate II and above 

Qualification Completion Target 79 2015 
  
Indigenous 89 
Non Indigenous 485 
Grand Total 574 

 
People with Disabilities Certificate II and above 
  
Qualification Completion Target 15 2015 
  
No Disability 15 
 

Certificate III and above 

Qualification Completion Target 443  2015 

Cert III + 407 

Regional and Remote Certificate III and above 
 

Qualification Completion Target 425 2015 

Regional Cert III+ 284 

Aboriginal Certificate II and above 

Qualification Completion Target 79 2015 

Indigenous 89 
Non Indigenous 485 
Grand Total 574 

People with Disabilities Certificate II and above 
 

Qualification Completion Target 15 2015 
 
No Disability  559 
Disability 15 
Grand total 574 

Aboriginal Question. 
Target 90% 

Year 
2014 
Response % 

Response 
Rate 

Not Responded 254 7% 
Responded 3,361 93% 
Grand Total 3,615 100% 

Disability Question. 
Target 90% 

Year 

2014 

Type Responded % 
Response 
Rate 

Not Responded 267 7% 
Responded 3,348 93% 

Grand Total 3,615 100% 

407 
Qualification
completions 

284 
Qualification 
completions

89 
Qualification 
completions

15 
Qualification 
completions

93% 
Response Rate 

93% 
Response Rate 
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TRAINING COMPARED TO PREVIOUS YEARS 

Aboriginal enrolments and enrolments in Certificate IV or Higher qualifications have improved over the past 3 years. 

1,493 
1,593 

1,400

1,600

1,800

2014 2015

Aboriginal Enrolments (Headcount) 

0

300,000

600,000

900,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Flexible Delivery 

NonFlexible

Flexible

0
200
400
600

F M F M F M

NESB Indigenous Disability

Target Groups (Headcount) 

2013

2014

20150

1,000

2,000

3,000

EBT Entitlement IBT Entitlement Non Entitlement

Entitlement Type (Head Count) 

2013

2014

2015

0

1,000

2,000

Headcount

Certificate IV or Higher Delivery 
 ( Head Count) 

2015

2014

2013
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Increase Our Commercial Revenue 

The Cambridge Business English Dictionary defines 
commercial awareness as, "the knowledge of how businesses 
make money, what customers want, and what problems there 
are in a particular area of business." 

Pilbara Institute has promoted an understanding of what the 
Institute needs to do to be viable, be successful, and serve its 
customers well. The launch and implementation of the 
Institute’s core values, and current business challenges 
facilitated commercial awareness in staff and helped to 
identify the organisation's strengths and weaknesses enabling 
well informed decisions being made in relation to commercial 
activity.     

Achievement 

• A revised organisation structure that enabled
ownership of commercial activity being with the
training teams.

• A review of systems and processes was conducted
to streamline the management of commercial
activity.

• PI was awarded the BHP Billiton “Iron Ore
Training” contract in the Pilbara.

Partnerships in Training 

Pilbara Institute has worked closely with employers and 
agencies to support and offer pathways to further training.  
For example, a partnership was established with BHP 
enabling employees to be skilled and upskilled in their 
identified areas of need.  The BHP Training Academy was 
established in South Hedland.  Qualifications were also 
offered to a range of agencies such as:-  

Achievement 

Ashburton Aboriginal Corporation, Dept. of Main Roads, 
Ngarliyarndu Bindirri Corp, Pilbara Business Centre, 
Public Transport Authority and Bloodwood Tree 
Association 

• Certificate II in Resources and Infrastructure
Education and Training Participation Plan for school  age 
students (Youth Engagement Strategy)  

• Certificate I in Industrial skills
Hedland and Karratha Senior High Schools, St Luke’s 
College Karratha 

• VETiS
Roebourne Regional Prison 

• Certificate I in Construction
• Certificate II in Construction Pathways,

Horticulture, Surface Extraction Operations,
Construction Pathways [Building Maintenance]
and Engineering
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• Certificate III in Civil Construction Plant

Operations
CAT Tender (Commonwealth) 

• Certificate I in Leadership, Certificate II in
Leadership

Youth Engagement Strategy (YES) is a program designed by the Pilbara Institute for clients, 
within the Department of Education and Ministry for Justice,  in order to re-engage 16 and 17 
year old students in learning. The students are supported in pick up and drop off as well as 
providing lunch and PPE, the mentor aligned to this program provides intensive mentoring, 
social, and financial administration assistance as a means of reducing some of the barriers to 
participation in this training. 

Strategic alliances have allowed the Institute to grow the 
organisation without expanding its size and incurring more 
costs. These alliances have improved processes by 
increasing our economies of scale as they have helped the 

Institute take advantage of sharing costly technology 
development and sharing staff costs and resources. 

Partnerships were strengthened between State Training 
Providers (STPs), organisations and community agencies to 
enable training to occur locally by locals. 
Agreement with SWIT 

• Data Administration and the development of
weekly reporting

• Marketing and Communications
Agreement with KTI 

• Reporting System to enable Management to view
and monitor delivery and performance of lecturing
staff

• Roll Creation (RRC) Wizard
• Quality and Disability Services support

Remote sites shared facilities with EPIC at the 
Newman Campus  

• The utilisation of the facility to meet the needs of
the community.

Remote sites shared facilities with FMG Roebourne 
• The shared utilisation of the facility to meet the

needs of the community.
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WORLDSKILLS 

Our students have competed and have been 
on the State Stage at the World Skills 
Competition and we congratulate our staff 
and our students on these achievements. 

Electrical control 

Jesse Turner  GOLD 
Luke Morrison  SILVER 
Sarah Karslake BRONZE 

Construction Steel (heavy fabrication) 

Ethan Wynne  GOLD 
Sven Walker   SILVER 
Zachery Clough BRONZE 

Fitting 

Scott Dorning  GOLD 
Ryan Sewell Mikayla Smith SILVER 
Zane Mettner  BRONZE 
Andrew Ninaus 4th 
Richard Wright 5th 

Ethan Wynne Worldskills Gold - Fabrication 

1Scott Dorning Worldskills Gold - Mechanical Fitting
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Key challenges in 2015 

• February 2015, we were addressing a projected deficit
in excess of $6.3 million and attempting to implement a
range of strategies to ensure that our staffing structure
matched the current demand for training.

• Training demand for apprenticeship commencements
in 2015 and student enrolments declined.

Key influences for 2015 

• Our Executive Management team continued to review
functions and processes, delivery methodology and
worked at expanding our partnerships to ensure that
delivery was a viable option for our local residents.

• We amended targets, adjusted financial plans and
continued to provide training to employers and
communities.  The student cohorts were different at

campuses and meeting the client demand was a 
challenge.   

• At the same time, the model of delivery at remote
campuses was changed resulting in the relocation of
staff to the major delivery sites of Pundulmurra and
Karratha.

• As a result of a continued and vigilant approach to
delivery and management of the business, the
amended target of 450,422 SCH was achieved.

• PI’s projected deficit of $6.3 million was reduced to
$3.4 million.

• 3,295 students enrolled and 721 achieved completion
of their study paths.

• We worked with industry and other government
agencies to provide specialised training programs.

• We worked with our partnering schools to ensure that
180+ school students achieved their Western Australia
Certificate of Education (WACE).

• Construction commenced on training facilities funded
through Royalties for Regions at Pundulmurra and
Karratha

Pilbara Institute    I   2015 Annual Report 34



SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IMPACTING THE AGENCY 

Artist conception of new Electrical and Instrumentation Centre of Specialisation 
building Artist conception of new Health and Community Services Training Centre 

building 
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Looking Ahead to 2016 

Key influences for 2016 

• Local conditions continue to be affected by the
resource sector.

• The increasingly competitive training market that is
demand driven and student centric.

• Working with local agencies and community providers
to increase training opportunities for Aboriginal people
and students with special needs.

• Exploring and identifying new areas of training demand
and emerging trends across the Pilbara.

Key activities for 2016 

• Formalise and strengthen partnerships with other
STPs, community providers and industry to share
human resources across the sector

• Review and consolidate functions performed to
minimise duplication of effort

• Work with partners to pursue opportunities for
customised training

• Consolidate the management of delivery to two main
sites of Karratha and Pundulmurra

• Continue to address the training demand across the
region

• Work with industry and other partners to build the
business of training and expand opportunities for
business growth

• Streamline business systems and processes such as
reviewing the functions of backroom responsibilities

• Centralise Customer Service functions to Karratha
Campus

• Ensure compliance of Occupational Safety and Health
Standard (AS/NZS 4801)

Critical Success factors 

• Cost saving strategies to align with revenue.
• Delivery of training to meet the local needs of the

region with training aligned to State Government
priorities including Future Skills WA

• Ensuring compliance with legislative standards
• Expand and develop partnerships with key

stakeholders such as other STPs and service providers
for the delivery of identified services and access to
resources.
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Advertising 

Total 
Expenditure 

Accounts paid 

Advertising 
agencies $90,782 Media Decisions OMD 

Marketforce 
Staff advertising 
(Recruitment  $11,263 Adcorp 

Direct Mail 
organisations nil nil 

Market Research 
Organisation  nil nil 

Polling 
Organisations nil nil 

Freedom of Information 

Pilbara Institute had no Freedom of Information requests in 
2015 

Compliance with Working with Children 

Pilbara Institute has an obligation under the Working with 
Children (WWC)(Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004 to ensure 
the safety of children in our community by helping to prevent 
people who have a criminal history that indicates they may harm 
children from working with children. 
The Institute records all WWC checks including copies of WWC 
cards to ensure compliance with legislative requirements. 

Conflict of Interest Statement 

At the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of 
employment of service, no Board Members or Senior Officers, or 
firms of which Members or Senior Officers are members, or 
entities in which Members or Senior Officers have substantial 
interests, had any interests in existing or proposed contracts with 
Pilbara Institute and Members of Senior Officers 
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OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 

Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct 

In 2015, the Institute received 2 allegations for breaches 
pertaining to the Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes. 
Breach claims against the Public Sector Standards in Human 
Resources Management lodged under the Public Sector 
Management (Breaches of Public Sector Standards) 
Procedures 2005 at Pilbara Institute during 2015 were: 

Standard Outcome Actions 

Disciplinary 
Issues 
Raised 

2 
Reprimand 
and / or 
warning 

1 

Recordkeeping Plan 

Pilbara Institute is a signatory to the sector wide 
Recordkeeping Plan (RKP) which was approved by the State 
Records Commission on the 7 December, 2012. A review of 
the RKP will be completed and submitted to the State 
Records Office by 7 December, 2017. This RKP complies with 
s19 of the State Records Act 2000. 

In 2015 record management policies and procedures were 
reviewed and updated to reflect changes resulting from the 
ongoing implementation of Total Records and Information 
Management (TRIM) to HPRM8.   

Record Keeping Training 

The Institute conducts the following record keeping training: 
• in-house training sessions conducted for groups and

individuals on a needs basis
• on-line Record Awareness Training (RAT) Induction

training through Moodle for all existing and new staff.
To date 84 % of staff have completed the induction and 100% 
of TRIM licenced users were trained.  
Training will continue for staff identified as requiring access. 

Effectiveness of the training has been verified by an increase 
in the use of TRIM.  
The increase is a result of Institute planning to move towards 
an electronic/paperless environment with a future vision of 
digitising all records. To date, Pilbara Institute has configured 
several Multifunctional Devices to comply with scanning to 
PDF/A to comply with the standards for digitising records. 
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes 

Outcome Number of strategies planned in 2015 Number of 
strategies 
completed 

Number of 
strategies 
progressed 
through 
contractors 

 1 All people have the same opportunity to access services and events 
organised by Pilbara Institute 

6/6 0 

 2 All people have the same opportunities to access Pilbara Institute’s 
buildings and facilities 4/4 0 

3 All people receive information from Pilbara Institute in a format that enables 
them to access the information readily 5/5 0 

4 All people receive the same level and quality of service from the staff of 
Pilbara Institute 3/3 0 

5 
All people have the same opportunities to make complaints to Pilbara 
Institute 2/2 0 

6 All people have the same opportunities to participate in any public 
consultation undertaken by Pilbara Institute 3/3 0 

7 People with disability have the same opportunities as other people to obtain 
and maintain employment with a public sector. 

5/5 0 
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GOVERNMENT POLICY REQUIREMENTS 

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management 

Pilbara Institute’s commitment to occupational safety and 
health, and injury management.  

Pilbara Institute has developed the Safety and Health 
Commitment – 2015 (Doc: OSHREF027) which is an excerpt of 
the OHS Policy. This commitment has been communicated to 
all staff via face-to-face meetings, as well as printed, personally 
signed by the Managing Director, and framed then placed 
around the campuses in offices, reception areas and 
lunchrooms. 

Pilbara Institute is committed to providing a work environment 
for employees, clients and visitors that will not affect their health 
and safety. Health and safety is a value of the Institute that is 
displayed through its culture and management system. 

Pilbara Institute commits to: 

• Ensure an injury-free environment.
• Ensure employees are trained in order to conduct their

roles safely.
• Communicate and consult with employees and other

stakeholders where appropriate, in the development of
OSH initiatives and procedures that contribute to the
growth and development of workplace safety.

• Improve the risk profile of the institute.
• Comply with its legislative responsibilities.
• Set measurable objectives and targets to ensure

continuous improvement aimed at elimination of work-
related injury and illness.

• Provide adequate resources to obtain, continually
monitor, audit and review the OSH management system
to align to the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System AS/NZS 4801.

This commitment is an obligation to all Pilbara Institute’s 
employees, clients and visitors, and will be reviewed and 
managed by the Executive Management Team. 
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The 2015 Strategic Goals for OSH were as follows: 

Objective Target 

Number of Fatalities Zero 
Lost Time Injury/ Disease Rate Zero or 10% improvement 

on the previous three (3) 
years 

Lost Time Injury Severity Rate Zero or 10% improvement 
on the previous three (3) 
years 

Percentage of injured workers 
returned to work  

(i) 13 weeks 
(ii) 26 weeks 

Greater or equal to 80% 
return to work within 26 
weeks. 

Percentage of managers and 
supervisors trained in 
occupational safety, health and 
injury management 
responsibilities. 

Greater or Equal to 80% 

Reduce the risk profile of the 
organisation 

No less than 5% reduction 

OSH Executive Committee 
meetings held every quarter, 
or when requested by the MD 

60% of planned meetings 
held 

OSH Legal Compliance No Less than 75% 
compliance 

The formal mechanism for consultation with employees on 
occupational safety and health matters. 

Pilbara Institute engaged an external consultant who developed 
an intranet site focusing on OSH. This site provides information 
to all staff to view OSH matters from committee meeting 
minutes, OSH learning material, hazards, incidents, corrective 
actions and overall OSH performance. 

The Institute’s OSH committee included staff from the two main 
campuses (Karratha and Port Hedland) and consisted of 
employee and safety representatives. Meetings occur monthly 
and the OSH Committee Terms of Reference (OSHREF031) 
are outlined below:-  

• Enable and assist consultation and cooperation
between employers and workers.

• To provide a point of contact for all employees
relating to matters of Safety and Health

• Help to initiate, develop and implement safety and
health measures.

• Keep informed about safety and health standards in
similar workplaces.

• Make recommendations on safety and health rules,
programs, measures and procedures.

• Ensure information on hazards is kept where it is
readily accessible.
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• Consider and make recommendation about changes

that may affect the safety and health of workers.
• Consider matters referred to it by safety and health

representatives
• Perform other functions prescribed in the regulations

or given to the committee, with its consent by the
employer.

An executive OSH Committee was established follow a 
complete review of OSH work practices.   

Newly developed and updated policies and procedures are 
made available on the intranet (Staff Central) site enabling 
employees the opportunity to view and provide feedback.  

Compliance with injury management requirements of the 
Worker’s Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981 
including the development of return to work plans. 

Pilbara Institute did not have a worker’s compensation claim 
which required the need for a return to work plan. 

Pilbara Institute has a Workers Compensation and Injury 
Management Policy (HRPOL630) which outlines legislative 
requirements and guidelines for the management and control of 
all Workers Compensation Claims and Injury Management 
issues in accordance with the requirements of the WA Workers 
Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. 

The principles of this policy are: 

• Ensuring compliance with the requirements of the
WA Workers Compensation & Injury Management
Act 1981;

• Ensuring all claims are to be treated in an ethical
and responsible manner;

• Ensure that the principles of Natural Justice are
observed and upheld in the handling of claims
and decisions made in all Workers Compensation
matters;

• Ensuring that all claims are treated as confidential
including where provisions of the Privacy Act
1988 apply; and

• The efficient and timely consideration of all
matters in relation to a claim lodged under this
this Policy.

Assessment of the Occupational Safety and Health 
Management System. 

An external audit was conducted by WA Safety Solutions on the 
OSH Management System (OSHMS) in April 2015 based on 
the Work Safe Plan audit tool. Through the findings of this audit 
an external consultant was engaged in June 2015 to review and 
improve the OSHMS for Pilbara Institute. 

In November 2015 a second internal audit was conducted 
(using the same tool) on the OSHMS to identify Pilbara 
Institute’s improved OSHMS (96% compliant to AS/NZS 4801). 

See table below outlining achievements.  
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Indicator Actual Results Results Against Target 

2013 2014 2015 Target Comment 
Number of Fatalities 0 0 0 Zero (0) Achieved 

Lost Time Injury/ Disease Rate 

1.03 1.16 0.76 Zero or 10% improvement on 
the previous three (3) years 

Achieved 

Lost Time Injury Severity Rate 

0.51 0 0 Zero or 10% improvement on 
the previous three (3) years Achieved 

Percentage of injured workers 
returned to work  
13 weeks  
26 weeks 

100% 100% 
N/A 

0
0

Greater or equal to 80% 
return to work within 26 
weeks. 

Achieved 

Percentage of managers and 
supervisors trained in 
occupational safety, health and 
injury management 
responsibilities 

100% 57% 85% Greater or Equal to 80% Achieved 

Note: These figures are based on Pilbara Institute’s actual data collated by the organisation. RiskCover data may be different. 
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Capital Works

Pilbara Institute is continuing with capital development as 
outlined in the Institute’s Strategic Infrastructure Plan. The 
Karratha Industry Skills Training Centre, part of the Deferred 
Maintenance Royalties for Regions program ($15.566 million) 
was handed over to the Institute in February 2015. The 
balance of the project will be completed by June 30th 2016. 

In South Hedland, the demolition of old buildings on the 
Pundulmurra Campus was completed in February 2015 to 
make way for the Royalties for Regions Health and 
Community Services Training Centre.  The tender was 
awarded to Pindan Contracting in October, who took 
possession of the site in December 2015 and commenced 
work just prior to Christmas. Practical completion is currently 
set for November 2016, in readiness for the commencement 
of the Training Year in 2017. 

The demolition of the Walkington Theatre on the Karratha 
Campus was completed in June of 2015.  This is the site for 
the Royalties for Regions Electrical and Instrumentation 
Centre of Specialisation. The contract was awarded to Pindan 
Contracting in late 2015. Anticipated practical completion of 
this contract is December 2016, in readiness for the 
commencement of the Training Year in 2017.
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Project Funding 
Source 

Initial 
Estimated 
Cost 

Final 
Estimated 
Cost 

Funds 
Acquitted 

Original 
Completion 
Date 

Current Est 
Completion 
Date 

Notes 

Project Funding 
Source/s 

Initial 
Estimated 
Cost 

Final 
Estimated 
Cost 

Funds 
Acquitted 

Original 
Completion 
Date 

Current Est 
Completion 
Date 

Notes 

Capital and sundry works 
KTA, PUN and SHE, 
includes Industry Skills 
Centre KTA 

Royalties 
for Regions 

$15.566m $15.219m $9.742m May 2014 June 2016 The scope of
some projects 
have been 
altered whilst 
others have 
come in 
significantly 
under budget 
allowing 
additional 
works to be 
added. 
Funding 
managed by 
DTWD. 

Electrical and 
Instrumentation Centre of 
Specialisation 
KTA 

Royalties 
for 
Regions, 
Woodside 

$9.5m $9.5m $1.352m February 
2016 

December 
2016 

Woodside 
sponsorship of 
$1,740,000 ex 
GST. 
Managed by 
PI. Balance by 
funding 
managed by 
DTWD. 
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DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL COMPLIANCE 
Contract 
awarded Dec 
2015 to 
Pindan 
Construction 

Health and Community 
Services Training Centre 
PUN 

Pilbara 
Cities, 
Pilbara 
Institute, 
Royalties 
for Regions 

$15.4m $15.7m $1.266m March 2015 November 
2016 

Construction 
commenced in 
2015. Practical 
completion 
date Dec 
2016. Funding 
managed by 
DTWD.  
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DISCLOSURE OF LEGAL COMPLIANCE 
Employment and Industrial Relations 

Staffing Profile Matrix  

2012 % Total 
FTE 

2013 % Total 
FTE 

2014 % Total 
FTE 

2015 % Total 
2015 

FTE for year 197.7 192.65 172.93 112.93 
Academic Delivery 91 46.42% 93.13 48% 79.06 46% 52.37 46% 
Academic Support 
Services/corporate Services 106 54.08% 99.52 52% 93.87 54% 60.56 54% 

Registerable* 0 0 0 5 4.4% 
Sourced from Pilbara Institute’s Payroll System and Empower HRMIS.  ** Registerable employees introduced July 2014.  NB: Information provided as at 
December 2015.  FTE figures can vary across the year by +/- 10% due to training demand fluctuations. 

Substantive Equity 

Equal Opportunity Management Plan Outcomes 2014 

Indicator 2014 Target 2014 Result 2015 Target 2015 Result* 
Women represented in management Tiers 2 & 
3 

60% 61.51% 60% 69.2% 

Employees from culturally-diverse backgrounds 5% 14.3% 5% 11.9% 

Aboriginal Australia employees 10% 4.6% 10% 6.3% 

Employees who identify as people with 
disabilities 

5% 2.5% 5% 3.5% 

Employees who are youth 6% 2% 6% 2% 
* Head count
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Certification of Financial Statements

8 March 2016

8 March 2016

8 March 2016

(Member of Governing Council)

Chief Finance Officer Dated

would render the particulars included in the financial statements 
misleading or inaccurate.

Chairman of Governing Council Dated

Managing Director Dated

The accompanying financial statements of Pilbara Institute
have been prepared  in compliance with the provisions of 

the Financial Management Act 2006  from proper accounts and
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 

31 December 2015 and the financial position as at 31 December 2015.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PILBARA INSTITUTE
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2015 2014
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Notes $ $
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 6 23,295,098    31,559,560    
Supplies and services 7 9,822,822      7,764,825      
Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 3,391,187      3,509,793      
Cost of sales 14 - 306 
Grants and subsidies 9 43,804           48,463           
Other expenses 10 1,866,891      2,627,949      
Total cost of services 38,419,802    45,510,896    

Income
Revenue
Fee for service 11 2,520,020      2,771,983      
Student fees and charges 12 1,508,879      1,788,728      
Ancillary trading 13 55,555           37,437           
Sales 14 - 917 
Interest revenue 15 426,368         509,987         
Other revenue 16 941,190         1,145,808      
Total revenue 5,452,012      6,254,860      

Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 17 555 545 
Total gains 555 545 

Total income other than income from State Government 5,452,567      6,255,405      

NET COST OF SERVICES (32,967,235) (39,255,491) 

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 18
Service appropriation 25,064,963    33,613,150    
Other Income from State Government 2,000,702      1,932,667      
Services received free of charge 2,623,568      1,121,991      
Total income from State Government 29,689,233    36,667,808    

(3,278,002) (2,587,683) 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation surplus 29 (31,090,570) (12,002,967) 
Total other comprehensive income (31,090,570) (12,002,967)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD (34,368,572) (14,590,650) 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Pilbara Institute

DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD

Pilbara Institute    I   2015 Annual Report 53



Pilbara Institute
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015 2014

Notes $ $
ASSETS
Current Assets  
Cash and cash equivalents 30 8,183,526       2,114,841       
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,30 2,476,489       4,028,266       
Receivables 20 930,518 690,477 
Other current assets 21 314,463 6,921,198       
Total Current Assets 11,904,996     13,754,782     

Non-Current Assets 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,30 47,381 - 
Property, plant and equipment 22 88,377,623     117,696,671   
Intangible assets 24 19,342 66,867 
Total Non-Current Assets 88,444,346     117,763,538   

TOTAL ASSETS 100,349,342   131,518,320   

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 26 1,040,173       1,261,599       
Provisions 27 2,310,116       2,874,959       
Other current liabilities 28 2,545,568       2,234,605       
Total Current Liabilities 5,895,857       6,371,163       

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 27 454,241 538,676 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 454,241 538,676 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,350,098       6,909,839       

NET ASSETS 93,999,244     124,608,481   

EQUITY 29
Contributed equity 35,165,463     31,406,128     
Reserves 54,164,748     85,255,318     
Accumulated surplus 4,669,033       7,947,035       

TOTAL  EQUITY 93,999,244     124,608,481   

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Pilbara Institute
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 2015 2014

Notes $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation - Department of Training and Workforce Development 25,231,566    33,583,923    
Other Income from State Government 1,791,153      1,932,667      
Cash Distributed to State Government (983,427)        (322,124)        
Net cash provided by State Government 26,039,292    35,194,466    

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (23,962,326)   (31,725,623)   
Supplies and services (6,961,106)     (6,727,656)     
Grants and subsidies (43,804)          (48,463)          
GST payments on purchases (873,573)        (972,673)        
Other payments (1,900,386)     (2,559,042)     

Receipts
Fee for service 2,757,180      3,812,230      
Student fees and charges  1,638,223      1,810,988      
Ancillary trading 55,555           8,927             
Interest received 479,575         463,208         
GST receipts on sales 233,172         342,535         
GST receipts from taxation authority 351,727         375,974         
Other receipts 705,916         1,717,118      
Net cash used in operating activities 30 (27,519,847)   (33,502,475)   

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets (383,999)        (946,078)        
Purchase of cash investments - (428,289)        
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 555 545  
Proceeds from liquidation of cash investments 6,428,289      -   
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 6,044,845      (1,373,821)     

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,564,290      318,169         

Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of period 6,143,107      5,824,938      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 30 10,707,397    6,143,107      

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Pilbara Institute
Accumulated

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Contributed Surplus / Total
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015  Equity Reserves  (Deficit)  Equity

Notes $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 January 2014 29 25,232,380    97,875,136    9,917,868      133,025,383 

  Transfer from Revaluation Reserve (a) - (616,851) 616,851         - 

  Surplus/(deficit) - - (2,587,683)     (2,587,683)     
  Other comprehensive income - (12,002,967) - (12,002,967)   
Total comprehensive income for the period - (12,619,818) (1,970,832)     (14,590,650)   

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners :
  Other contributions by owners 6,542,102      - - 6,542,102 
  Distribution to owners (368,353) - - (368,353)        
Total 6,173,749      - - 6,173,749 

Balance at 31 December 2014 31,406,128    85,255,318    7,947,035      124,608,481 

Balance at 1 January 2015        31,406,128    85,255,318    7,947,035      124,608,481 

  Surplus/(deficit) - - (3,278,002)     (3,278,002)     
  Other comprehensive income - (31,090,570) - (31,090,570)   
Total comprehensive income for the period - (31,090,570) (3,278,002)     (34,368,572)   

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:
  Other contributions by owners 4,742,762      - - 4,742,762 
  Distribution to owners (983,427) - - (983,427)        
Total 3,759,335      - - 3,759,335 

Balance at 31 December 2015 35,165,463    54,164,748    4,669,033      93,999,244 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

(a) Transfer from Revaluation Reserve
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

1. Australian Accounting Standards
(p) General 
The Institute's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 
have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The 
term 'Australian Accounting Standards' includes Standards and Interpretations 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

The Institute has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian 
Accounting Standards from their operative dates. 

(q) Early adoption of standards 
The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 
specifically permitted by Treasurer's Instruction (TI) 1101 'Application of 
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'. Partial 
exemption permitting early adoption of AASB 2015-7 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector Entities has been granted. Aside from AASB 2015-7, there has 
been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been 
issued or amended (but not operative) by the Institute for the annual reporting 
period ended 31 December 2015. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these policies are 
consistent with those adopted in the previous year. 

(a) General statement  
The Institute is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose 
financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the 
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s instructions. 
Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary 
application, disclosure, format and wording. (For example, AASB 116 requires 
land and buildings to be measured at either cost or fair value; TI 954 
mandates the fair value option). 

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s instructions impose 
legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and 
take precedence over the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the AASB. 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial 
effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting 
financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

(b) Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting using the historical cost convention, except for land and buildings 
which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 
have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless 
otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars ($). 

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ 
discloses judgements that have been made in the process of applying the 
Institute’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on 
amounts recognised in the financial statements.  

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions 
made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material  adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year. 

Going Concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which 
assumes that the Institute will be able to generate sufficient positive cash 
flows to meet its financial obligations and realise its assets and extinguish its 
liabilities in the normal course of business  

(c)  Reporting entity 

The reporting entity comprises the Institute. 

(d) Contributed equity 

AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned 
Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, 
other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be 
designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions  by owners (at the 
time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity 
contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions 
by owners by TI 955 'Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public 
Sector Entities' and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity. 

The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a 
restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by 
owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. See 
note 29 'Equity'. 
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

(e) Income 
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration 
received or receivable. 

The majority of operating revenue of the Institute represents revenue earned 
from student fees and charges, fee for service, ancillary services, trading 
activities and Commonwealth grants and contributions. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognised for the major business activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets 
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser 
and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services 
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
transaction. 

Interest 
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. 

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Institute obtains control over the 
assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are 
recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised 
when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be 
purchased if not donated. 

State funds 
The funds received from the Department of Training and Workforce 
Development in respect of the delivery of services forming part of the Delivery 
Performance Agreement are included in State funds, disclosed under ‘Income 
from State Government'. They are the result of training successfully tendered 
for under competitive tendering arrangements. This revenue is recognised at 
nominal value in the period in which the Institute meets the terms of the 
Agreement. See note 18 'Income from State Government'. 

Gains 
Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These 
include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some 
revaluations of non-current assets. 
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

(f) Property, plant and equipment 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised 
as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their 
useful lives. Where applicable in accordance with TI 1101, the capitalisation 
threshold has been applied to the aggregate value of a group or network of 
assets where the cost of individual item may be below the threshold but 
collectively the cost of the items in the group or network exceeds the 
threshold. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are 
immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
(other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are 
significant in total). 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. 

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for 
the measurement of land and buildings and historical cost for all other 
property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value 
less accumulated depreciation (buildings only) and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings 
is determined on the basis of current market values determined by reference 
to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by reference to 
recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated 
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to 
the revalued amount.  

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is 
determined on the basis of existing use.  This normally applies where 
buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for 
existing use buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the 
remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the 
depreciated replacement cost.  

Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated 
replacement cost basis, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against 
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the 
revalued amount.  
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Subsequent measurement (continued) 
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market 
evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or 
market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western 
Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised 
annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the 
asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are 
made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in 
determining estimated economic life. 

Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not 
provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use 
assets. Refer to note 22 'Property, plant and equipment' and note 23 ‘Fair 
Value Measurement’ for further information on revaluations. 

Derecognition 
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, 
any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset 
revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements 
on the revaluation of non-current assets as described in note 22 ‘Property, 
plant and equipment’. 

Depreciation 
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the 
consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which 
are reviewed annually. 

Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 
Buildings   40 years 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers  4 to 23 years 
Plant, furniture and general equipment 4 to 28 years 
Computer equipment and communication network (a) 1 to 15 years 
Marine craft 6 to 15 years 

 (a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. 

Land is not depreciated.  
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

(g) Intangible assets 
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally 
generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or more are capitalised. The cost 
of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs 
incurred below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no 
cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to 
be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the 
period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed 
annually) on the straight line basis.  All intangible assets controlled by the 
Institute have a finite useful life and zero residual value.  The expected useful 
lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

Licences  up to 10 years 
Software (a) 3 to 5 years 

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 

Licences 
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Computer software 
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as 
property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not an integral part of the 
related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset.  Software costing less 
than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

(h) Impairment of assets 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any 
indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period.  Where there is 
an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the 
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment 
loss is recognised.   Where an asset measured at cost is written down to 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where 
a previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is 
recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income.  
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

(h) Impairment of assets (continued) 
As the Institute is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been 
identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 
depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or 
where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets 
is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic 
benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.  

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of 
fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value 
have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by 
reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by 
reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of 
impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost 
are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.  

See note 25 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and 
testing.  See note 2(m) 'Receivables' and note 20 'Receivables' for impairment 
of receivables. 

(i) Leases 
The Institute has entered into operating lease arrangements for motor 
vehicles and some plant and equipment. Lease payments are expensed on a 
straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of 
benefits derived from the leased assets. See note 31 “Commitments”. 

(j) Financial instruments 
In addition to cash at bank, the Institute has two categories of financial 
instruments: 

• Receivables;
• Other financial assets; and
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

These have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

Financial assets 
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables

Financial liabilities 
• Payables
• DPA Clawback
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

(j) Financial instruments (continued) 
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value 
which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent 
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost 
or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent 
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 
(k) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include restricted cash and cash equivalents. These are comprised of cash on 
hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of six months or less that 
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(l) Accrued salaries 
Accrued salaries (see note 26 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff 
but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay period for 
that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. 
Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The 
Institute considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to 
its fair value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 19 ‘Restricted cash and 
cash equivalents’) consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account 
over a period of ten financial years to largely meet the additional cash outlay 
in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No 
interest is received on this account. 

(m) Receivables 
Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for 
any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment).  The collectability of receivables 
is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as 
uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  The allowance for 
uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective 
evidence that the Institute will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying 
amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. 
See note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 20 ‘Receivables’. 
(n) Payables 

Payables are recognised when the Institute becomes obliged to make future 
payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying 
amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days. 
See note 2(j) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 26 'Payables'. 
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PILBARA INSTITUTE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 

(o) Provisions 
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised 
where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. See note 27 
‘Provisions’.  

(i) Provisions - employee benefits 
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period. 

Annual leave 
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the 
end of the reporting period and is therefore considered to be ‘other long-
term employee benefits’. The annual leave liability is recognised and 
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the 
time of settlement.  

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to 
expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components 
such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience 
of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the 
Institute does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 

Long service leave 
Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the reporting period and is therefore recognised and 
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the 
time of settlement. 
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(o) Provisions - Long service leave (continued) 
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to 
expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components 
such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience 
of employee departures and periods of service.  The expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current 
liabilities as the Institute does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave 
provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Institute has 
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the 
employee has completed the requisite years of service. 

Deferred Leave 
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who 
have entered into an agreement to self-fund an additional twelve months 
leave in the fifth year of the agreement. The provision recognises the value 
of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. This liability is 
measured on the same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported 
as a current provision as employees can leave the scheme at their 
discretion at any time. 

Superannuation 
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other 
funds administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western 
Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for 
membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary 
according to commencement and implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit 
pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme 
closed to new members since 1995. 

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not 
members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-
contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  

Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became 
members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, 
existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been 
able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider.  
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(o) Provisions - Superannuation (continued) 
The Institute makes contributions to GESB or other funds providers on 
behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to 
these accumulation schemes extinguish the Institute’s liability for 
superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of 
the Pension Scheme or GSS.  

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and 
whole-of-government reporting.  However, it is a defined contribution plan 
for Institute purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined 
contributions) made by the Institute to GESB extinguishes the Institute’s 
obligations to the related superannuation liability. 

The Institute has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The 
liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS 
transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from the Pension 
Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS obligations are 
funded by concurrent contributions made by the Institute to the GESB.  

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme 
and GSS, and is recouped from the Treasurer for the employer's share. 
See also note 2(p) 'Superannuation expense'. 

(ii) Provisions - other 

Employment on-costs 
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not 
employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and 
expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.   

Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not 
included as part of the Institute's 'Employee benefits expense’. The related 
liability is included in 'Employment on-costs provision'. (See note 10 'Other 
expenses' and note 27 'Provisions'.) 

(p) Superannuation expense 
The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
comprises employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), 
the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the GESB Super Scheme 
(GESBS) and other superannuation funds.  
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(q) Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Institute 
would otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair 
value of the assets or services where they can be reliably measured. A 
corresponding expense is recognised for services received.  Receipts of 
assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are 
separately disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. 

(r) Comparative figures 
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable 
with the figures presented in the current financial year. 

3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make 
judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  The Institute 
evaluates these judgements regularly. 

Operating Lease Commitments 
The Institute has entered into a commercial lease and has determined that the 
lessor retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the property. Accordingly, the lease has been classified as an 
operating lease.  

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year. 

Long Service Leave 
Several estimations and assumptions in calculating the Institute’s long 
service leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, 
employee retention rates and expected future payments.  Changes in these 
estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the 
long service leave provision. 

Impairment of Receivables 
The allowance for impairment of receivables is estimated based on 
assessment of the collectability of individual debts. Generally debts less 
than 120 days overdue are not considered to be impaired. 
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Invalid Enrolment and under delivery of the Delivery & Performance 
Agreement  
Included in Current Liabilities is an estimate of enrolments that may be 
considered invalid by Department of Training and Workforce Development 
and in Receivables the value for over delivery in the Institute’s training 
programs. An estimate has been made based on student information held 
at the year end with final results determined by the Department the 
following year. 

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 
The Institute has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards 
effective or adopted, for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2015 that impacted on the Institute. 

AASB 1055  Budgetary Reporting 
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose 
financial statements of not-for-profit entities within the General Government 
Sector. The Institute is required to disclose additional budgetary information 
and explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts, 
though there is no financial impact. 
AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 

Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments 
Part C of this Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017. 
The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 1 January 2018 
by AASB 2014-1. The Institute has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of AASB 9. 
AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
Part A changes consist primarily of clarifications to Accounting Standards and 
have no financial impact for the Institute. Part B has no financial impact as the 
Institute contributes to schemes that are either defined contribution plans, or 
deemed to be defined contribution plans. Part C has no financial impact as 
the Standard removes references to AASB 1031 Materiality from a number of 
Accounting Standards. 
AASB 2014-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 

AASB 9 (December 2014) – Application of AASB 9 
(December 2009) and AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 9 
(2009 & 2010)] 

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
(December 2009) and AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010), 
arising from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 2014. 
The Institute is not currently permitted to early adopt the resultant financial 
instrument standard and has not yet determined the financial impact of the 
Standard. 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)

AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value 
Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 13] 

This Standard relieves not-for-profit public sector entities from the reporting 
burden associated with various disclosures required by AASB 13 for assets 
within the scope of AASB 116 that are held primarily for their current service 
potential rather than to generate future net cash inflows. It has no financial 
impact. 

Voluntary changes in accounting policy 
No voluntary changes in accounting policy have been made. 

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 
The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 
specifically permitted by TI 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting 
Standards and Other Pronouncements'. Consequently, the Institute has not 
applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have 
been issued that may impact the Institute. Where applicable, the Institute 
plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application 
date. 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Operative for 

reporting periods 
beginning on / after 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, 
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after being 
amended by AASB 2012 6, AASB 2013 9, and, AASB 2014 1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards.  The Institute has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
This Standard establishes the principles that the Authority shall apply to report useful 
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of 
revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The Institute has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9(December 2010) [AASB 
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and 
Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] 
This standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The mandatory application 
date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 
2018. The Institute has not yet determined the application or potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Operative for 

reporting periods 
beginning on / after 

AASB 
2014-1 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
Part E makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other Standards.  It has 
not yet been assessed by the Institute to determine the application or potential impact of the 
Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 
2014-3 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 
Operations [AASB 1 & 11] 
The Institute establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and does not routinely acquire 
interests in Joint Operations.  Therefore, there is no financial impact on application of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 
2014-4 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 
Depreciation and Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138] 

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Institute as depreciation and 
amortisation is not determined by reference to revenue generation, but by reference to consumption 
of future economic benefits. 

1 Jan 2016 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Operative for 

reporting periods 
beginning on / after 

AASB 
2014-5 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
(including interpretations) arising from issuance of AASB 15. The Institute has not yet determined 
the application or potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 
2014-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) 
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
(including interpretations) arising from issuance of AASB 9 (December 2014). The Institute has not 
yet determined the application or potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 
2014-9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Equity Method in Separate Financial 
Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 128] 
This Standard amends AASB 127 and consequentially amends AASB 1 and AASB 128 to allow 
entities to use the equity method of accounting for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates in their separate financial statements. The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Operative for 

reporting periods 
beginning on / after 

AASB 
2014-10 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture [AASB 10 & 128] 

This Standard amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to address an inconsistency between the 
requirements in AASB 10 and those in AASB 128 (August 2011), in dealing with the sale or 
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The Institute has not 
yet determined the application or potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 
2015-1 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting 
Standards 2012-2014 Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 110, 119, 121, 133, 134, 137 & 140] 
These amendments arise from the issuance of International Financial Reporting Standard Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle in September 2014, and editorial corrections. The 
Institute has not yet determined the application or potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 
2015-2 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 
[AASB 101, 134, & 1049] 
This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the disclosure requirements in 
AASB 101. Specifically, the Standard proposes narrow-focus amendments to address some of the 
concerns expressed about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure entities 
are able to use judgement when applying a Standard in determining what information to disclose in 
their financial statements. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 
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5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)
Operative for 

reporting periods 
beginning on / after 

AASB 
2015-3 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 
Materiality 
This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations, allowing that Standard to effectively be withdrawn. There is no 
financial impact. 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 
2015-6 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-
Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 1049] 
The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application by not-for-profit public 
sector entities. Implementation guidance is included to assist application of the Standard by not-for-
profit public sector entities. The Institute will be required to make related party disclosures, though 
there is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 

Changes in Accounting Estimates 
There have been no changes in accounting estimates. 
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2015 2014
$ $

6 Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a) 20,225,908 29,542,572 
Voluntary Severance Scheme 1,602,184 36,990 
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 1,467,006 1,979,998 

23,295,098 31,559,560 

7 Supplies and services
Consumables and minor equipment (a) 572,841 658,309 
Communication expenses 141,916 181,122 
Utilities expenses 1,873,525 1,647,958 
Consultancies and contracted services (b) 1,612,877 1,409,985 

     2,623,569      1,121,990 

Minor works 633,595 857,831 
Repairs and maintenance 985,430 178,972 
Operating lease and hire charges 270,975 431,073 
Travel and passenger transport 455,381 442,739 
Advertising and public relations 114,126 78,451 
Supplies and services - other 500,586 566,590 
Supplies and Services -PD staff activities  38,001 189,805 

9,822,822 7,764,825 

(b)  Services received free of charge from other government agencies which were previously 
disclosed as part of Consultancies and contracted service, have been disclosed separately. 2014 
comparatives have been adjusted to match 2015 disclosure.

(a) (i) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax
       component, leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component.
     (ii) Includes Government Regional Officers Housing rent contributions recouped from
     staff against the Government Regional Officers Housing rental expense.

(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, and Gold State and Government
      Employees Superannuation Board and other eligible funds.

Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers' compensation insurance, are included at note 
10 'Other expenses'. 
Employment on-costs liability is included at note 27 'Provisions'.

(a) Vet In Schools student resource fees which were previously disclosed as part of 
Consumables and minor equipment, have been reclassified as Grants and subsidies. Refer note 
9 'Grants and subsidies'. 2014 comparatives have been adjusted to match 2015 disclosure.

 Services received free of charge from other government
 agencies (b) 
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2015 2014
$ $

8 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation
Buildings 2,431,104  2,503,678  
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 258,875     255,603     
Plant, furniture and general equipment 412,732     461,772     
Computer Equipment and communication network 238,959     241,570     
Marine craft 1,993         2,393         
Total depreciation 3,343,663  3,465,016  

Amortisation
Software 47,524       44,777       
Total amortisation 47,524       44,777       

Total depreciation and amortisation 3,391,187  3,509,793  

9 Grants and subsidies
Recurrent
Payments to non-TAFE providers for VET service delivery (a) 43,804       48,463       

43,804       48,463       

10 Other expenses
Building maintenance (a) 405,422     238,296     
Doubtful debts expense 8,842         3,020         
Employment on-costs (b) 1,317,216  2,279,065  
Donations -             3,055         
Student prizes and awards 5,304         9,941         
Audit Fees 118,396     68,655       
Losses and write-offs 11,579       4,263         
Other (a) 132            21,654       

1,866,891  2,627,949  

(a) Vet In Schools student resource fees which were previously disclosed as part of 
Consumables and minor equipment, have been reclassified as Grants and subsidies. Refer note 
7 'Supplies and services'. 2014 comparatives have been adjusted to match 2015 disclosure.

(a) Occupational Safety and Health costs previously disclosed as 'Other' have been reallocated 
and disclosed as 'Building maintenance'. 2014 disclosure has been adjusted to match 2015 
disclosure. 'Other' includes refunds of prior revenue year and expense rounding.

(b) Employment on-costs - Includes workers' compensation insurance and payroll tax.  The on-
costs liability associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included 
at note 27 'Provisions'.  Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave 
are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
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2015 2014
$ $

11 Fee for service
Fee for service - general 1,802,675  2,517,195  

     195,259      170,617 

Fee for service - Government (other than DTWD) 418,181     12,000       
International division fees 103,905     72,171       

2,520,020  2,771,983  

12 Student fees and charges
Tuition fees 1,087,108  1,251,229  
Resource fees 308,055     382,295     
Other Institute fees 13,753       67,693       
Student Fees - Recognition of Prior Learning Fees 99,807       87,511       
Student Fees Incidental Fees and Other Charges 156            -             

1,508,879  1,788,728  

13 Ancillary trading
Live works (not a trading activity) 9,256         8,927         
Other ancillary revenue (sale of books and handbooks) (a) 46,299       28,510       

55,555       37,437       

14 Trading profit/(loss)

(a) Bookshop:
Sales - 917            

  Cost of sales:
  Opening inventory - (5,402)        
  Purchases - -             
Adjustments to inventory - 833            

- (4,569)        

  Inventory write off - 4,263         
  Closing inventory - -             
Cost of goods sold - (306)           
Trading profit/(loss) - Bookshop - 611            

Total Sales - 917            

 Fee for service - Department of Training and Workforce 
Development (DTWD) 

Sale of books and handbooks which were previously disclosed as part of this note, have been 
reclassified as Ancillary trading. Refer note 13 'Ancillary trading'. 2014 comparatives have been 
adjusted to match 2015 disclosure.

(a) Sale of books and handbooks which were previously disclosed as part of note 14 'Trading 
profit/(loss)', have been reclassified as Ancillary trading. 2014 comparatives have been adjusted 
to match 2015 disclosure.
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2015 2014
$ $

15 Interest revenue
Interest revenue (Commonwealth Bank) 226,435     291,554     
Interest revenue (Bankwest) 195,682     218,433     
Interest revenue (ANZ) 4,251         -             

426,368     509,987     

16 Other revenue
Expense recoveries -               450 
Fuel Tax credits          1,172             265 
Government Vehicle Scheme Recoupment          6,436          8,337 
Insurance recovery        11,697 -   
Library revenue          7,001        12,761 

     105,000      105,000 
Other Grants DTWD - Capital upgrades -        247,464 

-          24,830 
Prior Year income        49,571          1,299 
Pundulmurra Village (Facilities Income)          8,273      107,883 
Rental and facilities fees      473,970      615,097 

-          14,419 
Vending Machine          1,316          1,811 

     266,669 -   

Other miscellaneous revenue        10,085          6,192 
941,190     1,145,808  

17 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets

Net proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Plant, furniture and general equipment 11,189       200            
Computers and communication network -             345            
Marine craft -             -             
Total proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 11,189       545            

Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed
Plant, furniture and general equipment 7,841         -             
Computers and communication network -             -             
Marine craft 2,793         -             
Total cost of disposal of non-current assets 10,634       -             

Net gain/(loss) 555            545            

Local Government Grants and Contributions

Polytechnic West Adult Migrant English Program 

City of Karratha & Pilbara Iron Early Learning Scholarship Program

Woodside Sponsorship - Electrical & Instrumentation Centre of 
Specialisation (EICS) project

See note 22 ‘Property, plant and equipment’.
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2015 2014
$ $

18 Income from State Government

Appropriation received during the year:

Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 25,061,790  33,607,965 
Other recurrent funds 3,173           5,185 
Total State funds 25,064,963  33,613,150 

Other Income from State Government
 Voluntary Severance Scheme recoup from DTWD 2,000,702    102,667 

-        1,830,000 

Total other income from State Government 2,000,702    1,932,667 

Department of Training and Workforce Development
- Corporate systems support 309,172       348,927 
- Marketing and publications 23,465         - 
- Human resources, and industrial relations support 24,584         27,819 
- Other & Non cash grants 2,266,347    659,070 

2,623,568    1,035,816 
Other Government - Department of Education - 86,175 

2,623,568    1,121,991 

Total income from State Government 29,689,233  36,667,808 

(a)  Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered.

19 Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Current
    Accrued salaries suspense account (a) - 253,297 
    Walkington Theatre Demolition Funding (b) - 1,947,659 
    Pundulmurra Education Investment Funding (c) 168,038       362,151 

       365,617      1,271,458 
    VET Fee Help Funding (e) 233,445       193,701 

    1,709,389 -   

Total current restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,476,489    4,028,266 

Non-Current
    Accrued salaries suspense account (a) 47,381         - 
Total non-current restricted cash and cash equivalents 47,381         -               
Total Restricted Cash and cash equivalents 2,523,870    4,028,266 

Service appropriation  (a) (State funds received from Department of 
Training and Workforce Development):

Services received free of charge from other State government 
agencies during the financial period :

 Capital grant - Walkington Theatre and Pundulmurra Houses 
Demolition Funding

    EIC- Woodside Sponsorship Funding (d)

    Health and Community Services Training Centre 
     Funding (HCSTC) (f)
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2015 2014
$ $

19 Restricted cash and cash equivalents (continued)

20 Receivables

Current
Receivables - trade 322,230     559,390     
Receivables - students 39,893       21,070       
Receivables - Woodside Sponsorship funding 266,669     -             
Accrued revenue 261,488     111,046     
Allowance for impairment of receivables (27,797)      (40,549)      
GST receivable 68,035       39,520       
Total  receivables 930,518     690,477     

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
Balance at start of  period 40,550       408,600     
Doubtful debts expense 8,842         3,020         
Amount written off during the period (4,156)        (372,036)    
Impairment losses reversed during the period (17,439)      966            
Balance at end of  period 27,797       40,550       

21 Other assets

Current
Prepayments 314,447     453,925     
Cash investments (a) -             6,428,289  
Other current assets (b) 16              38,984       
Total current 314,463     6,921,198  

(a) Cash Investments consist of:
-             6,000,000  
-             428,289     

(b) Other current assets consist of Apprentice travel funding to be received from
      Apprenticeship Australia.

The Institute does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for 
receivables.

See also note 2(m) 'Receivables' and note 35 'Financial instruments'. 

i) Bankwest 5 month fixed term deposit
ii) Pundulmurra Village Income

(a)  Funds held for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a financial year that occurs
        every 11th year.
(b)  Unspent funds committed to the Walkington Theatre demolition project.
(c)  Unspent funds committed to the Pundulmurra Education Investment project,
       Commonwealth funding.
(d)  Unspent funds committed to the EICS project, Woodside contribution. 
(e)  The amounts relate to unexpended VET Fee Help Commonwealth funding. 
(f)  Unspent funds committed to the HCSTC project.
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2015 2014
$ $

22 Property, plant and equipment

Land
At fair value (a) 13,573,000 19,773,000     

13,573,000 19,773,000     
Buildings
At fair value (a) 72,402,000 94,871,426     
Accumulated depreciation - (16,986) 

72,402,000 94,854,440     
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 
At cost 1,946,597    1,910,984       
Accumulated depreciation (1,291,978) (1,035,527) 

654,619 875,457          
Plant,  furniture and general equipment
At cost 3,960,978    4,012,792       
Accumulated depreciation (2,584,284) (2,434,072) 

1,376,694 1,578,720       
Computer equipment, communication network
At cost 1,687,471    1,783,123       
Accumulated depreciation (1,316,161) (1,172,855) 

371,310 610,268          
Marine craft
At cost - 33,500            
Accumulated depreciation - (28,714) 

- 4,786              

Carrying amount at end of period 88,377,623 117,696,671   

(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2015 by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services).   The valuations were performed during the year 
ended 31 December 2015 and recognised at 31 December 2015. In undertaking the 
revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to market values for land: $ 1,800,000 
(2014: $ 1,800,000) and buildings: $ 0 (2014: $700,000). For the remaining balance,  fair 
value of buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and fair value 
of land was determined on the basis of comparison with market evidence for land with low 
level utility (high restricted use land). See note 2(f) 'Property, plant and equipment'.

Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 23.
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22 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land Buildings

Motor 
vehicles, 
caravans 

and trailers 

 Plant,  furniture 
and general 

equipment 

 Computer 
equipment, 

communication 
network 

Marine 
craft Total

2015 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Carrying amount at start of year 19,773,000 94,854,439   875,457      1,578,721        610,268           4,786     117,696,671  
Additions - 200,954        41,058        152,623           - -         394,635         
Transfers (a) - 4,668,280     -              74,482             - -         4,742,762      
Other Disposals - (103,710)       (5,445)         (278,920)          (95,652)            (33,500)  (517,227)        
Revaluation increments/(decrements) (6,200,000)   (24,786,859)  -              - - -         (30,986,859)   
Depreciation Write Back on Disposal - - 2,423          262,521           95,652             30,707   391,303         
Depreciation - (2,431,104)    (258,875)     (412,732)          (238,959)          (1,993)    (3,343,663)     
Carrying amount at end of period 13,573,000 72,402,000   654,618      1,376,695        371,310           -         88,377,623    

     (a) Transfer of Karratha Industrial Skills Centre and Moonrise Cinema screen from the Department of Training and Workforce Development

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting  period are set out in the 
table below.
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22 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land Buildings

Motor 
vehicles, 

caravans and 
trailers 

 Plant,  
furniture and 

general 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment, 

communication 
network 

Marine 
craft Total

2014 $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Carrying amount at start of year 22,973,000  99,551,150   1,077,710     1,708,805    409,378           7,179     125,727,222  
Additions - 813,331        53,350          79,537         442,460           - 1,388,678      
Transfers (a) - 6,048,754     - -               - - 6,048,754      
Other Disposals - - - (7,000)          (18,500)            - (25,500)          
Reclassifications (b) - (275,926)       - 275,926       - - - 
Revaluation increments/(decrements) (3,200,000)   (8,802,967)    - -               - - (12,002,967)   
Depreciation Write Back on Disposal - - - 7,000           18,500             - 25,500           
Depreciation on Reclassifications (b) - 23,775          - (23,775)        - - - 
Depreciation - (2,503,678)    (255,603)       (461,772)      (241,570)          (2,393)   (3,465,016)     
Carrying amount at end of  period 19,773,000  94,854,439   875,457        1,578,721    610,268           4,786     117,696,671  

(a) Transfers consist of 14 Units on Somerset Crescent Pundulmurra (previously College Court) from Department of Housing.

(b) Reclassifications consist of a modified sea container used as a mobile classroom and 2 other modified containers used as training 
equipment for working in confined spaces which had been previously disclosed as part of buildings and have now been reclassified to Plant, 
furniture and general equipment.
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23 Fair value measurement
Fair Value

Assets measured at fair value : Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 At end
 of period

2015 $ $ $ $
Land (Note 22) - 1,800,000    11,773,000     13,573,000    
Buildings (Note 22) - -               72,402,000     72,402,000    

- 1,800,000    84,175,000     85,975,000    

Assets measured at fair value : Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
At end

 of period
2014 $ $ $ $

Land (Note 22) - 1,800,000    17,973,000     19,773,000    
Buildings (Note 22) - 700,000       94,154,440     94,854,440    

- 2,500,000    112,127,440   114,627,440  

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period. 

Level 2 fair values of Land and Buildings (accommodation units) are derived using the market approach.
Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and buildings (accommodation units) in close proximity is used to determine price 
per square metre. The accommodation units will be demolished by March 2016 as this facility has ceased operations.
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23 Fair value measurement (continued)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
2015 Land Buildings

$ $
Fair Value at start of period 17,973,000 94,154,440    
Additions - 4,869,234      

   (6,200,000)    (24,086,860)

Disposals - (103,710)       
Depreciation Expense - (2,431,104) 

11,773,000 72,402,000    

2014

Fair Value at start of period 17,973,000 91,491,878    
Additions - 6,862,085      

-        (1,702,967)

Reclassification to Plant, furniture and general equipment - (192,878)       
Depreciation Expense - (2,303,678) 

17,973,000 94,154,440    

Valuation processes

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements 

Description Fair 
Value
2015

Fair 
Value
2014

Valuation
Technique(s)

$'000 $'000
Land 11,773 17,973 Market 

approach
Buildings 72,402 94,154 Depreciated 

Replacement 
Cost

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income

Fair value for existing use specialised building is determined by reference to the cost of replacing 
the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement 
cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated 
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed economic 
benefit, expired economic benefit or obsolescence of the asset. Determination of the current 
replacement cost of such assets held by the Institute is calculated by reference to gross project 
size specifications.

Fair value for restricted use land is based on comparison with market evidence for land with low 
level utility (high restricted use land).

Fair Value at end of period

Fair Value at end of period

Pilbara Institute    I   2015 Annual Report 86



Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2015 2014
$ $

23 Fair value measurement (continued)
Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Note 22.

Basis of Valuation

24 Intangible assets

Computer software
At cost 492,639     492,639     
Accumulated amortisation (473,296)    (425,772)    

19,343       66,867       

Reconciliations

Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period 66,867       60,896       
Additions -             50,748       
Amortisation expense (47,524)      (44,777)      
Carrying amount at end of period 19,343       66,867       

25 Impairment of assets

26 Payables

Current 
Trade payables -             -             
Accrued expenses 966,613     906,911     
Accrued salaries and related costs 70,538       349,047     
Paid parental leave payable 3,022         5,641         
Total current 1,040,173  1,261,599  

See also note 2(n) 'Payables' and note 35  'Financial Instruments'.

In the absence of market-based evidence due to the specialised nature of the assets, non-
financial assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. 
The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have been placed on their 
use and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to requirements. These 
restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community 
service and the Institute's enabling legislation.

There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment or intangible 
assets at 31 December 2015. 

The Institute held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the 
reporting period. At the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet 
available for use. 

 All surplus assets as at 31 December 2015 have been sold or written off.
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2015 2014
$ $

27 Provisions
Current
Employee benefits provision
  Annual leave (a) 895,523 1,029,700 
  Long service leave (b) 1,270,500 1,608,044 
  Deferred Salary Scheme ( c) 4,867 67,575 

2,170,890 2,705,319 
Other provisions
  Employment on-costs (d) 139,226 169,640 

139,226 169,640 
Total current 2,310,116 2,874,959 

Non-current
Employee benefits provision
  Long service leave (b) 426,851 506,190 

426,851 506,190 
Other provisions
  Employment on-costs (d) 27,390 32,486 

27,390 32,486 
Total non-current 454,241 538,676 

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 738,424 853,817 
       More than 12 months after  the end of the reporting period 157,099 175,883 

895,523 1,029,700 

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 463,164 457,077 
       More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 1,234,189 1,657,157 

1,697,353 2,114,234 

       Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 4,867 67,575 
       More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period (i) - - 

4,867 67,575 

(c) Deferred salary scheme liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period. Actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments 
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as 
follows:

(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of 
employment on-costs including workers' compensation insurance.  The provision is the 
present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the 
unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 10 'Other expenses'.
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2015 2014
$ $

27 Provisions (continued)

Movements in other provisions

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period 202,126         207,738          
Additional provisions recognised / (reversed) (32,619)          (5,612)             
Carrying amount at end of period 169,507         202,126          

28 Other liabilities
Current 
Income received in advance(a) 5,649             50,723            
VET Fee Help advances (a) 233,445         40,204            
Grants and advances (DPA Clawback) (b) 2,289,722      2,123,119       
Money/deposits held in trust 16,752           16,752            
Other - 3,807              
Total current 2,545,568      2,234,605       
(a) Income received in advance comprises:

Other Government (Commonwealth) 233,445         40,204            
Student fees and charges 5,649             50,723            

239,094         90,927            

29 Equity

Contributed equity
Balance at start of period 31,406,128    25,232,380     
Other contributions by owners

- 493,347          

Transfer of net assets from other agencies (a) 4,742,762      6,048,754       
Total contributions by owners 4,742,762      6,542,101       
Distributions to owners
Transfer of cash to other agencies (b) (983,427)        (368,353)         
Total distributions to owners (983,427)        (368,353)         
Balance at end of period 35,165,463    31,406,128     

Royalties for Regions Fund - Regional Infrastructure and 
Headworks Account

Superannuation provisions which were previously disclosed separately have been disclosed as 
part of annual or long service leave liabilities. 2014 disclosure has been adjusted to match 
2015 disclosure.

(b) DTWD - DPA Clawback and Invalid Enrolments liability 

Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, 
are set out below.

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Institute on behalf of the 
community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Institute. The asset 
revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-
current assets.
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2015 2014
$ $

29 Equity (continued)

(a) Transfer of net assets from other agencies 
-          6,048,754 

      4,742,762 -   

(b) Transfer of cash to other agencies 

Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at start of period 85,255,318    97,875,136     

Transfer to accumulated surplus (a) - (616,851) 

Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
Demolition of Pundulmurra Campus buildings (103,710)       - 
 Land (6,200,000)    (3,200,000) 
 Buildings (24,786,860) (8,802,967) 
Change in asset revaluation surplus (31,090,570) (12,619,818) 

Balance at end of period 54,164,748    85,255,318     

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 
Balance at start of period 7,947,035      9,917,868       
Transfer from reserves (a) - 616,851          
Result for the period (3,278,002) (2,587,684) 
Balance at end of period 4,669,033      7,947,035       

Total Equity at end of period 93,999,244    124,608,481   

      Woodside contribution to Royalties for Regions EICS project recouped by DTWD

(a) Transfer from Revaluation Reserve
Relates to the transfer of asset revaluation surpluses for assets no longer held by the Institute 
which were previously measured at fair value.

      Transfer of 14 Units on Somerset Crescent Pundulmurra
      from the Department of Housing
      Transfer of Karratha Industrial Skills Centre and Moonrise 
      Cinema screen from the Department of Training and 
      Workforce Development
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2015 2014
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30 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of cash

Cash on hand 1,695             3,960              
Cash at bank 472,442         2,110,881       
Short term deposits (a) 7,709,389      - 
Cash and Cash equivalents 8,183,526      2,114,841       

      2,523,870        4,028,266 

10,707,396    6,143,107       

Net cost of services 32,967,235    39,255,490     
Non-cash items:

      3,391,187        3,509,793 

          (12,752)               3,020 
      2,623,568        1,121,990 

               (555) (545)

           11,579          (366,807)

         262,007           254,164 
(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a) 10,775           1,919,400       
Current inventories - 1,139              
Prepayments 139,478         (9,927)             
Other current assets 38,968           18,327            
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (a) (221,427)        (392,296)         
Income received in advance 148,167         - 
Current provisions (564,843)        114,850          
Other current liabilities (3,807)            9,921              
Non-current provisions (84,435)          (188,177)         
Net GST receipts/(payments) (b) (288,674)        (254,164)         
Change in GST in receivables/payables (c) (1,848)            12,328            
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (27,519,847)   (33,502,474)    

(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the 
receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these 
items as they do not form part of the reconciling items. 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer note 19 'Restricted 
cash and cash equivalents')

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating 
activities

Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the 
related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 8 'Depreciation 
and amortisation expense)
Doubtful debts expense (note 10 ‘Other expenses’)
Resources received free of charge (note 7 'Supplies and 
services' and note 18 ‘Income from State Government’) 
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant  and equipment (note 
17 ‘Net gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets’)
Losses and write-offs (excludes cash shortages/thefts of 
money) (note 10 ‘Other expenses’)
FBT expense and Fuel Tax Credits offset from GST refunds
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2015 2014
$ $

31 Commitments
The commitments below are inclusive of GST.

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Within 1 year 208,490     175,760     
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 143,450     152,355     

351,940     328,115     

32 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities

Contaminated sites

Contingent assets
As at the reporting date the Institute has no contingent assets.

33 Events occurring after the reporting period

34 Explanatory statement

i. the dollar aggregate of 2.00% multiplied by Total Cost of Services for revenues, gains
and expense line items, excluding changes in asset revaluation surplus; or

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2015 and between actual 
results for 2014 and 2015 are shown below.
Significant variances are considered to be those greater than 5% and

The following contingent liabilities are additional to the liabilities included in the financial 
statements:

Government asbestos guidelines state that any building or building product manufactured 
prior to 1987 should be treated as containing the asbestos product. Under this 
determination, the Institute deems that all of its sites would need to be reasonably 
suspected of containing asbestos. Sites that are confirmed as being suspected of 
containing asbestos include Roebourne, Pundulmurra and Onslow.

On 24 February 2016 the Minister for Training and Workforce Development announced a 
plan to consolidate the current 11 West Australian State training providers to five by April 
2016. The regional providers will be restructured to three, these will be North, Central and 
South Regional TAFE, Pilbara Institute will form part of the new North Regional TAFE. 
This disclosure is for information purposes only and does not impact the financial 
information detailed in the attached financial statements.

See also note 2 (i) 'Leases'.

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Institute is required to report known and 
suspected contaminated sites to the Department of Environment and Regulation (DER). In 
accordance with the Act, DER classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human 
health, the environment and environmental values. Where sites are classified as 
contaminated - remediation required or possibly contaminated - investigation required, the 
Institute may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses. There 
were no sites classified as contaminated, remediation required.

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
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34 Explanatory statement (continued)

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Variance

Note
 2015

Actual 
 2015

Estimate 
2014

Actual

Variance
between
estimate

and 
actual 

Variance
between

actual
results for

2015 and 
2014

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
COST OF SERVICES 
Expenses

 Employee benefits expense 1, A 23,295  33,146  31,560  (9,851) (8,264)  
 Supplies and services B 9,823  10,004  7,765  (181) 2,058 
 Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3,391  4,281  3,510  (890) (119)  
 Grants and subsidies 44  44  48  (0) (5)  
 Other expenses 1,867  1,929  2,628  (62) (761)  

Total cost of services 38,420  49,405   45,511    (10,985)  (7,091)  

Income 
Revenue

 Fees for services 2,520  2,553  2,772  (33) (252)  
 Student fees and charges 2 1,509  2,574  1,789  (1,065) (280)  
 Ancillary Trading 56  5  37  51 18  
 Sales -  -  1  - (1)  
 Interest revenue 426  89  510  338  (84)  
 Other revenue 941  1,028  1,146  (86) (205)  

Total Revenue 5,452  6,248  6,255  (796) (803)  

Gains
   Gains on disposal of non current assets 1  -  1  1 0  
Total Gains 1  -  1  1 0  

Total income other than income from 
State Government

 5,453  6,248  6,255  (795)  (7)

NET COST OF SERVICES (32,967)  (43,157)  (39,255)   10,190    (3,902)  

Income from State Government 
 Service appropriation 3, C 25,065  33,552  33,613  (8,487) (8,548)  
 Other Income from State Government 4 2,001  180  1,933  1,820  68  
 Service received free of charge 5, D 2,624  1,094  1,122  1,530  1,502 

Total Income from State Government 29,689  34,826   36,668    (5,137)    (6,979)  

SURPLUS/ DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD (3,278)  (8,330)    (2,587)     5,052      (10,880)  

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
   Changes in asset revaluation surplus 7, G (31,091)  726  (12,003)   (31,817)  (19,088)  
Total Other Comprehensive Income (31,091)  726  (12,003)   (31,817)  (19,088)  

 (34,369)     (7,604)    (14,590)    (26,764)  6,986 

ii. The dollar aggregate of 2.00% multiplied by Total Cost of Services for cash flow line items not substantially
explained elsewhere in another narrative disclosure; or 

iii. the dollar aggregate of 2.00% multiplied by Total Assets for asset, liability and equity line items except those
relating to cash assets, receivables, payables, contributed equity and accumulated surplus. 
The dollar aggregate calculated from Total Cost of Services and Total Assets is based on 2015 Estimate for the 
budget and actual comparison and 2014 Actual for the actual and prior year comparison.

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
PERIOD
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34 Explanatory statement (continued)

Statement of Financial Position 
Variance

Note
 2015

Actual 
 2015

Estimate 
2014

Actual

Variance
between
estimate

and 
actual 

Variance
between

actual 
results

for 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

ASSETS 
Current Assets
   Cash and Cash equivalents 8,184       3,313       2,115        4,871       6,069 
   Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,476       284          4,028        2,192       (1,552)       
   Receivables 931          677          690           253          240 
   Other current assets E 314          419          6,921        (105) (6,607)       
Total Current Assets 11,905     4,693       13,755      7,212       (1,850)       

Non-Current Assets 
   Restricted cash and cash equivalents 47            -           - 47            47 
   Property, plant and equipment 6, F 88,378     144,451   117,697    (56,073)   (29,319)     
   Intangible assets 19            -           67             19            (48)            
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 88,444     144,451   117,764    (56,007)   (29,319)     

TOTAL ASSETS 100,349   149,144   131,518    (48,794)   (31,169)     

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 
   Payables 1,040       1,084       1,262        (44) (221)          
   Provisions 2,310       2,717       2,875        (407) (565)          
   Other current liabilities 2,546       512          2,235        2,034       311 
Total  Current Liabilities  5,896       4,312       6,371        1,584       (475)          

Non-Current Liabilities
   Provisions 454          727          539           (273) (84)            
Total Non-Current Liabilities 454          727          539           (273) (84)            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,350       5,039       6,910        1,311       (560)          

NET ASSETS 93,999     144,105   124,608    50,106     30,609 

EQUITY 
   Contributed equity 6 35,165     47,140     31,406      (11,975)   3,759 
   Reserves 7, G 54,165     100,100   85,255      (45,935)   (31,091)     
   Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 8, H 4,669       (3,135)      7,947        7,804       (3,278)       
TOTAL EQUITY 93,999     144,105   124,608    (50,106)   (30,609)     
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34 Explanatory statement (continued)

Statement of cash flows 
Variance

Note
 2015

Actual 
 2015

Estimate 
2014

Actual

Variance
between
estimate

and 
actual 

Variance
between

actual 
results

for 2015
and 2014

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 

 Service appropriation 3, C 25,232  33,552  33,584  (8,321)  (8,352)     
 Other Income from State Government 4 1,791  180  1,933  1,611  (142)  
 Cash Distributed to State Government (983)  (1,347)     (322)  364  (661)  

Net cash provided by State Government 26,039  32,385  35,194  (6,346)  (9,155)     

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACCOUNT 
Payments

 Employee benefits 1, A (23,962)  (33,505)   (31,726)  9,543  7,763  
 Supplies and Services 9 (6,961)    (8,822)     (6,728)    1,861  (233)  
 Grants and subsidies (44)  (44)  (48)  - 5  
 GST payments on purchases (874)  (711)  (973)  (162)  99  
 Other payments (1,900)  (1,868)     (2,559)    (32) 659  

(33,741)  (44,951)   (42,033)  11,210     8,292  
Receipts 

 Fee for service I 2,757  2,555  3,812  202  (1,055)  
 Student fees and charges  1,638  2,555  1,811  (917)  (173)  
 Ancillary trading 56  5  9  51  47  
 Interest received 480  157  463  322  16     
 GST receipts on sales 233  367  343  (134)  (109)  
 GST receipts from taxation authority 352  344  376  8  (24)  
 Other receipts J 706  1,148  1,717  (443)  (1,011)     

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  (27,520)    (37,820)   (33,502)      10,300  5,983 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments

 Purchase of non-current assets (384)  -  (946)  (384)  562  
   Purchase of cash investments -  -  (428)  - 428  
Receipts

 Proceeds from sale of non-current assets 1  -  1  1  0  
 Proceeds from liquidation of cash investments 10, K 6,428  -  -  6,428  6,428  

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  6,045  -  (1,374)  6,045  7,419 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 4,564  (5,435)  318  9,999  4,246  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
period 6,143  9,031  5,825  (2,888)  318  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END 
OF THE PERIOD

 10,707  3,597  6,143  7,111  4,564 
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34 Explanatory statement (continued)

Major Variances Narratives

Variance between estimate and actual

1) Employee benefits expense  was lower than estimate by $9.8 million (30%) largely due
to 

i) lower Government Regional Officers' Housing expenses in 2015 due to the change in
     eligibility in the policy from staff at level 3 to level 5, reduction in rental prices within the
     Pilbara and lower staff numbers; and 

ii) a reduction in staff numbers due to the recent restructure within the Institute and
    26 staff opting for voluntary severances.
2) Student fees and charges  were lower than estimates by $1.1 million (41%) due to the

decrease in SCH targets from 630,000 to 453,996.
3) Service appropriation  was lower than estimates by $8.5 million (25%) largely due to
   the reduction in GROH funding and decrease in SCH targets from 630,000 to 453,996. 

6) Property plant and equipment was lower than estimates by $56.1 million (39%) mainly
due to:

i) capital projects completion dates being deferred to 2016;
ii) substantial devaluation of the South Hedland campus and devaluation to land and

     buildings due to the general decline in property values within the Pilbara region (as 
     per valuation performed by Landgate).

7) Reserves were lower than estimates by $45.9 million (46%) mainly due to capital
       projects completion dates being deferred to 2016, substantial devaluation of the
       South Hedland campus and devaluation to land and buildings due to the general
      decline in property values within the Pilbara region (as per valuation performed
      by Landgate).

9) Supplies and Services  payments were lower than estimates by $1.8 million (21%)
       largely to lower expenses due to achievement of lower SCH targets and cost savings
       measures to address the decline in student activity partially offset by an increase in
       utility and contracted services expenditure.

8) Accumulated surplus/(deficit) was higher than estimates by $7.8 million (249%) largely
      due to a lower deficit for 2015. Significant reasons for the deficit have been explained 
      in the accompanying disclosures.

10) Proceeds on liquidation of cash investments was higher than estimates by $6.4
million (100%) as no cash investments had been budgeted for.

5) Services received free of charge  was higher than estimates by $1.5 million (140%)
largely due to the demolition expenses for the Walkington Theatre that were paid for by
DTWD on behalf of the Institute.

4) Other Income from State Government  was higher than estimates by $1.8 million
     (1,009%) due to the Voluntary Severance Scheme recoup from DTWD. 
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34 Explanatory statement (continued)

Major Variances Narratives (continued)

Variance between actual results for 2015 and 2014

A) Employee benefits expense  decreased by $8.3 million (26%) largely due to
i) lower Government Regional Officers' Housing expenses in 2015 due to the change in
eligibility in the policy from staff at level 3 to level 5, reduction in rental prices within the Pilbara
and lower staff numbers; and
ii) a reduction in staff numbers due to the recent restructure within the Institute and 26 staff
opting for voluntary severances.

B) Supplies and Services  increased by $2.1 million (27%) largely due to the demolition
expenses for the Walkington Theatre building and Pundulmurra campus houses.

I) Fee for service  receipts decreased by $1.1 million (28%) due to lower fee for service delivery
and less outstanding debtor invoices collected in 2015 compared to 2014.

D) Services received free of charge  increased by $1.5 million (134%) largely due to the
demolition expenses for the Walkington Theatre that were paid by for DTWD on behalf of the
Institute.

E) Other current assets decreased by $6.6 million (95%) mainly due to the liquidation of short
term investments and a lower amount prepaid to Riskcover for workers' compensation
insurance premium.

G) Reserves decreased by $31.1 million (36%) mainly due the substantial devaluation of the
      South Hedland campus and devaluation to land and buildings due to the general decline in 
      property values within the Pilbara region (as per valuation performed by Landgate).

F) Property plant and equipment decreased  by $29.3 million (25%) mainly due to the substantial
devaluation of the South Hedland campus and devaluation to land and buildings due to the
general decline in property values within the Pilbara region (as per valuation performed by
Landgate).

H) Accumulated surplus/(deficit) decreased by $3.3 million (41%) due to the Institute incurring
a deficit for 2015. Significant reasons for the deficit have been explained in the accompanying
disclosures.

J) Other receipts  decreased by $1.0 million (59%) due to
i) the decrease in Government vehicle scheme recoupment revenue, expense recoveries,

      library revenue, other grants from DTWD for capital and maintenance upgrades, Polytechnic 
      West Adult Migrant English Program revenue, Pundulmurra Village income, rental and 
      facilities revenue, Shire of Roebourne & Pilbara Iron early learning scholarship program 
      revenue and vending machine revenue 2015; partially offset by 

ii) the increase in fuel tax credits, insurance recoveries, prior year income and Woodside
      Sponsorship EICS Royalties for Regions project.
K) Proceeds on liquidation of cash investments increased  by $6.4 million (100%) due to the

liquidation of the short term investments.

C) Service appropriation  decreased by $8.5 million (25%) largely due to the decrease in GROH
funding and SCH achievement from 586,575 to 453,996.
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35 Financial instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Credit risk

Other than as detailed in the Interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note 35(c), the 
Institute is not  exposed to material interest  rate risk because the majority of cash and 
cash equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and it has no borrowings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each 
class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive 
of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 35(c) ‘Financial instruments 
disclosures’ and note 20 ‘Receivables’.

Credit risk associated with the Institute’s financial assets is minimal because the Institute 
trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Institute has policies in place to 
ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate 
credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the 
result that the Institute's exposure to bad debt is minimal. At the end of the reporting period 
there are no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Financial instruments held by the Institute are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash 
and cash equivalents and receivables and payables. The Institute has limited exposure to 
financial risks. The Institute's overall risk management program focuses on managing  the 
risk identified below:

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Institute’s receivables defaulting on 
their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Institute.  

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Institute is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall 
due. The Institute is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of 
business.  The Institute has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including 
drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient 
funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and 
interest rates will affect the Institute's income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The Institute does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed 
to other price risks (for example, equity securities or commodity prices changes). 
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2015 2014
$ $

35 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Categories of financial instruments

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,183,526  2,114,841  
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 2,523,869  4,028,266  
Receivables (a) 862,483     650,958     

Other Financial Assets
Cash Investments -             6,428,289  

Financial Liabilities
Payables 1,040,173  1,261,599  
Grants and advances (DPA Clawback) 2,289,722  2,123,119  

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

(c) Financial instrument disclosures

Credit risk

The following table discloses the Institute's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Institute's maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the 
ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior 
management of the Institute.

The Institute does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are :
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35 Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Carrying 
Amount

 Not past due 
and not 

impaired 
Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months

 3 months 
to 1 year 1-5 Years 

 More 
than 5 
years 

 Impaired 
Financial 

Assets 
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
2015
Cash and cash equivalents 8,183,526 8,183,526 -           -          -          -         - - 
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 2,523,869 2,523,869 -           -          -          -         - - 
Receivables  (a) 862,483 628,987 164,615 63,227    -          -         - 5,655 (b)

11,569,878 11,336,382 164,615 63,227    -          -         - 5,655 

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,114,841 2,114,841 -           -          -          -         - - 
Restricted cash  and cash equivalents 4,028,266 4,028,266 -           -          -          -         - - 
Receivables  (a) 650,958 496,953 100,501 46,815    475 -         - 6,215 (b)
Other Financial Assets
Cash Investments 6,428,289 6,428,289 -           -          -          -         - - 

13,222,354 13,068,349 100,501 46,815    475 -         - 6,215 

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).
(b)  Impaired Receivables relate to debtors over 120 days. In 2015 it is expected that only $5,655 (2014: $6,215) will be recovered. The 
carrying amount of receivables before deducting the impairment loss was $33,452 (2013: $47,329). 

Ageing analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired
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35 Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
Interest Rate

Variable 
Interest 

Rate

 Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

 Nominal 
Amount 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months

 3 months to 
1 year 

1-5 
Years 

More 
than 5 
years

% $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
2015
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
   Cash on hand 0.00% 1,695           -              - 1,695         1,695 1,695         -             -             - -     
   Commonwealth Operating Bank Account 2.13% 2,181,831    -              2,181,831 -             2,181,831 2,181,831  -             -             - -     
   Bankwest 3 month fixed term deposit 3.26% 6,000,000    6,000,000   - -             6,000,000 -             6,000,000 -             - -     

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
    27th Pay - Restricted Cash 2.13%           47,381 -           47,381 -             47,381        47,381 -   -           -          -   
    VET Fee Help 2.13%         233,445 -         233,445 -           233,445      233,445 -   -           -          -   
    Pundulmurra Education Investment
    Funding

1.97%         168,038 -         168,038 -           168,038      168,038 -   -           -          -   

    EICS Woodside Funding 1.79%         365,617 -         365,617 -           365,617      365,617 -   -           -          -   
    HCSTC Funding NAB fixed term deposit 0.25%      1,709,389    1,709,389 -   -        1,709,389 -      1,709,389 -           -          -   

Receivables  (a) 0.00% 862,483       -              - 862,483     862,483 793,601     63,227 5,655 - -     
11,569,879  7,709,389   2,996,312 864,178     11,569,879 3,791,608  7,772,616 5,655 - -     

Financial Liabilities
Payables 0.00% 1,040,173    -              - 1,040,173  1,040,173 1,040,173  -             -             - -     
Grants and advances (DPA Clawback) 0.00% 2,289,722    -              - 2,289,722  2,289,722 2,289,722  -             -             - -     

3,329,895    -              - 3,329,895  3,329,895 3,329,895  -             -             - -     

(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).

The following table details the Institute’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis 
section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates
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35 Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure (continued)

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate
Carrying 
Amount

Fixed 
Interest Rate

Variable 
Interest 

Rate

 Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

 Nominal 
Amount 

Up to 1 
month 1-3 months

 3 months to 
1 year 

1-5 
Years 

More 
than 5 
years

% $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
2014
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash on hand 0.00% 3,960  -  -  3,960  3,960  3,960  -  -  -  -  
 Commonwealth Operating Bank Account 2.62% 2,058,687  -  2,058,687  -  2,058,687  2,058,687  -  -  -  -  
 Pundulmurra Village BOS account 3.26%  52,194  -  52,194  -  52,194  52,194  -  -  -  - 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
 27th Pay - Restricted Cash 2.62%  253,297  -  253,297  -  253,297  253,297  -  -  -  - 
 VET Fee Help 2.62%  193,701  -  193,701  -  193,701  193,701  -  -  -  - 
 Pundulmurra Education Investment
 Funding

2.46%  362,151  -  362,151  -  362,151  362,151  -  -  -  - 

 EICS project Woodside Funding 
 5 month fixed term deposit 

3.09%  930,000  930,000  -  -  930,000  -  -  930,000  -  - 

 EICS Woodside Funding BOS Account 2.50%  341,458  -  341,458  -  341,458  341,458  -  -  -  - 

 Demolition of Walkington Theatre
 Funding

2.62%  1,947,659  -  1,947,659  -  1,947,659  1,947,659  -  -  -  - 

Receivables  (a) 0.00% 650,958 -  - 650,958  650,958 597,453  46,815 6,690 - -  
Other Financial Assets
Bankwest 5 month fixed term deposit 3.64% 6,000,000 6,000,000  - -  6,000,000 -  -  6,000,000 - -  
Pundulmurra Village 7 month fixed term 
deposit

2.98%  428,289  428,289  -  -  428,289  -  -  428,289  -  - 

13,222,354 7,358,289  5,209,147  654,918  13,222,354 5,810,560  46,815 7,364,979 - -  
Financial Liabilities
Payables 0.00% 1,261,599 -  - 1,261,599  1,261,599 1,261,599  -  -  - -  
Grants and advances (DPA Clawback) 0.00% 2,123,119 -  - 2,123,119  2,123,119 2,123,119  -  -  - -  

3,384,718 -  - 3,384,718  3,384,718 3,384,718  -  -  - -  
(a)  The amount of receivables excludes the GST receivables from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates
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35 Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Carrying 
amount Surplus Equity Surplus  Equity 

2015 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 8,181,831  (81,818)     (81,818)    81,818 81,818       
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents

  2,523,870      (25,239)      (25,239)      25,239        25,239 

Total Increase/(Decrease) (107,057)   (107,057)  107,057 107,057     

Carrying 
amount Surplus Equity Surplus  Equity 

2014 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 2,110,881  (21,109)     (21,109)    21,109 21,109       
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents

  4,028,266      (40,283)      (40,283)      40,283        40,283 

Other Financial Assets
Bankwest 5 month fixed term 
deposit 

  6,000,000      (60,000)      (60,000)      60,000        60,000 

Pundulmurra Village 7 month 
fixed term deposit

     428,289        (4,283)        (4,283)        4,283          4,283 

Total Increase/(Decrease) (125,674)   (125,674)  125,674 125,674     

Fair values

- 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they 
are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable 
approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Institute's financial 
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for 
a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant 
throughout the reporting period.

- 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points
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36 Remuneration of members of the Institute and senior officers

$ 2015 2014
        $0 -  $10,000 *9 *9

$340,001 - $350,000 1 1

$ $
Base remuneration and superannuation 237,727     192,728      
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 5,870         19,632        
Other  benefits 143,193     137,265      
Total remuneration of the members of the Institute 386,790     349,624      

* Includes members of the Institute where periods of service are less than 12 months.

Remuneration of senior officers

$ 2015 2014
$10,001 - $20,000 0 *1
$80,001 - $90,000 0 1

$110,001 - $120,000 **1 0
$140,001 - $150,000 0 *1
$270,001 - $280,000 0 1
$280,001 - $290,000 1 0
$290,001 - $300,000 1 0
$300,001 - $310,000 0 1
$330,001 - $340,000 **1 0
$360,001 - $370,000 0 1

$ $
Base remuneration and superannuation** 819,753     492,558      
Annual leave and long service leave accruals (69,039) 38,769        
Other  benefits 284,346     658,052      
Total remuneration of senior officers 1,035,061  1,189,379   

* Includes senior officers where periods of service are less than 12 months.
** Includes redundancy payments to two senior officers.
No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme. 

Remuneration of members of the Institute
The number of members of the Institute whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-
monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Institute, 
whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the 
financial year, fall within the following bands are:

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of 
senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Institute.

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of 
members of the Institute.

Pilbara Institute    I   2015 Annual Report 104



Pilbara Institute
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2015 2014
$ $

37 Remuneration of auditor

       81,000        85,000 

38 Related bodies
The Institute has no related bodies.

39 Affiliated bodies
The Institute has no affiliated bodies.

40 Supplementary financial information
(a) Write-Offs

11,579 
-   

      Bad debts 4,156         372,036     
      Inventory -             4,263         

       15,735 376,299     

41 Schedule of income and expenditure by service

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current 
financial year is as follows:

The amount disclosed above differ from the amounts in note 10 'Other expenses' which include 
amounts paid for internal audit services. The 2014 disclosure differs from prior year financials 
due to additional audit fees incurred for 2014.

The Institute provides only one service (as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 1101 (9)) and that 
is Vocational Education and Training Delivery.

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance 
indicators

      Public property written-off by the Executive Council during 
      the financial year
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators 

We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to 
assess the Pilbara Institute’s performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Pilbara Institute for the year ended 31 
December 2015. 

Ian Smith 8 March 2016 

Chairperson, Governing Council 

Pilbara Institute 

Marlene Boundy 

Managing Director  8 March 2016 

Member, Governing Council 
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Pilbara Institute Key Performance Indicators for the Year Ended 31 December 2015

Desired Outcome 

Pilbara Institute has developed the following Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) to provide an overall indication of the 
Institute’s operations as prescribed in the Vocational

Education and Training Act 1996 and program objectives as 
embodied in the Institute’s vision/mission statement. 
The desired outcome of the Institute is the provision of 
services to meet community and industry training needs. 

Effectiveness Indicators 

The effectiveness indicators measure the achievement of 
vocational education and training in meeting community and 
industry needs via student and graduate satisfaction, labour 
force status of graduates and profile achievement. 

Student Satisfaction Survey 

The table below presents information about the satisfaction 
levels amongst students at Pilbara Institute from 2011 to 
2015. The figures are derived from the WA Student 
Satisfaction Survey which is used to measure the quality of 
the service provided by the Institute, and to gain a better 
understanding of their customers and their needs. 
The overall student satisfaction rating expresses the number 
of 'satisfied' and 'very satisfied' respondents.  The results 
provide an overall expression of how satisfied students are 

with various services provided by the Institute.  The survey 
results show a marked improvement in satisfaction in 2015.  
In the 2015 Training WA Student Satisfaction Survey, 90.6% 
of students who responded were either very satisfied or 
satisfied with their chosen course at Pilbara Institute. 
Compared to the State average of 87.8% Pilbara Institute has 
continued to better the state average for three years in a row. 

Table 1 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Target 

2015 

Actual 

Pilbara 
Institute 89.9% 85.2% 90.6% 87.3% >85.9% 90.6% 

Western 
Australia 88.2% 86.3% 85.9% 86.9% 87.8% 

Notes: Source: Patterson Market Research (2015) Student Satisfaction Survey. Derivation: 

The response rate for the survey was 17.8%. Confidence interval is ± 3.3% and a confidence level 

of 95%. Total population of 1,397 with a sample size of 249 students.   
The WA Student Satisfaction Survey is an annual survey amongst students who are funded 
under the National Agreement for Skills and Workforce Development. The following student 
groups have been excluded from the scope of the survey: international full fee paying 
students, students undergoing training through a school-based program (VET in schools), 
students who are in a correctional facility and students aged less than 15 years. 
A new statistical weighting system has been used for the survey results since 2012. The old 
weighting was applied to Industry Groups, which sometimes meant that large multipliers are 
applied to small groups of students. 
All data under the new weighting method have been weighted to reflect the total student 
population based on a combination of student gender (male/female), age group (15-19, 20-
29, 30-44, 45+), student status (Institutional Based Training, Employment Based Training) 
and training provider. Weight cells with a zero count for the population and survey data were 
removed. 
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Student Outcomes Survey 

The Student Outcomes Survey is conducted on behalf of 
National Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER) 
by I‐view Pty Ltd every two years.  The aim of the survey is to 
measure vocational education and training students' 
employment, further study and the opinions of the training 
undertaken.   

Student Outcomes Survey (continued) 

Every two years, questionnaires are sent to a stratified (field 
of education, sex and age), randomly selected sample of 
Pilbara Institute graduates, who have successfully completed 
a qualification in the previous reporting period. 

Graduates who have wholly or partly achieved their main 

reason for undertaking the course 

The graduate achievement is a key performance indicator that 
measures the extent to which Pilbara Institute Graduates have 
wholly or partly achieved their main reason for undertaking the 
course.  

Pilbara Institute’s target was to achieve higher than the state 
and national average of 83.9% and 82.2% respectively. 

Table 2 

2011 2013 2015 

Pilbara Institute 93.3% 91.0% 87.1% 
TAFE Western 
Australia 87.5% 85.8% 83.9% 

TAFE Australia 85.8% 83.8% 82.2% 
Derivation: Response rates for graduates was 45.9%. Confidence interval for survey is ± 5.5% @ 95% 

confidence Ievel. 

Comments:  

The Student Outcomes Survey covers students who have an Australian address as their 

usual address and are awarded a qualification (graduates). The scope of the survey is for 

Commonwealth, State funded and fee for service funding types. Students who undertake 

recreational, leisure or personal enrichment (short) courses are excluded. This scope has 

been in place since 2005. Prior to 2005, information was only collected from students 

undertaking Commonwealth/State funded programs. The 2011 and 2013 benchmark 

comparisons have been revised from all VET providers to TAFEs only for consistency. 

Graduates in Employment 

This particular KPI involves the proportion of graduates in 
employment, demonstrating the extent to which the Institute is 
providing relevant quality training that improves student 
employability.  The performance indicator shows the 
proportion of graduates responding to the NCVER Student 
Outcomes Survey who were in paid employment as at 25th 
May, the year following graduation. 
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Pilbara Institute’s target was to achieve higher than the state 
and national average of 77.7% and 74.3% respectively. 
Table 3 

2011 2013 2015 

Pilbara Institute 92.2% 89.3% 84.7% 

TAFE Western 
Australia 79.7% 80.4% 77.7% 

TAFE Australia 77.1% 77.1% 74.3% 
Derivation: Response rates for graduates was 45.9%. Confidence interval for survey is ± 

5.8% @ 95% confidence level. The 2011 and 2013 benchmark comparisons have been 

revised from all VET providers to TAFEs only for consistency. 

Achievement of the 2015 Institute Profile 

Pilbara Institute is resourced to deliver courses under 
Government-purchased funding guidelines to meet consumer 
demand and respond to local community needs, individual 
requirements and workforce development plans.  This 
performance indicator reports the effectiveness of the Institute 
in meeting Delivery and Performance Agreement targets. 

The diversity of the delivery indicates the extent to which the 
Institute has met its strategic training needs as defined in the 

State Training Profile as well as additional delivery provided 
under a fee‐for‐service arrangement.  
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Delivery Profile by Major ANZSCO Group 

ANZSCO Group 
2014 

Achieved 
2015 

Achieved 
2015 Target Var. % Achieved 

 1 - MANAGERS Total     12,639 3,350 15,318 -11,968 21.87% 

11 - Chief Executives, General Managers and Legislators 6,660 3,350 5,500 -2,150 60.91% 
13 - Specialist Managers 2,895 0 5,100 -5,100 0.00% 
14 - Hospitality, Retail and Service Managers 3,084 0 4,718 -4,718 0.00% 
 2 - PROFESSIONALS Total     47,655 34,345 46,048 -11,703 75% 

21 - Arts and Media Professionals 8,585 7,250 6,330 920 114.53% 
22 - Business, Human Resource and Marketing Professionals 10,660 5,880 10,000 -4,120 58.80% 
24 - Education Professionals 27,125 19,960 28,688 -8,728 69.58% 
 27 - Legal, Social and Welfare Professionals 1,285 1,255 1,030 225 121.84% 
 3 - TECHNICIANS AND TRADES WORKERS Total   169,266 134,666 155,511 -20,845 86.60% 

31 - Engineering, ICT and Science Technicians 46,399 36,558 37,580 -1,022 97.28% 
32 - Automotive and Engineering Trades Workers 51,579 36,413 46,545 -10,132 78.23% 
33 - Construction Trades Workers 25,114 24,754 27,328 -2,574 90.58% 
34 - Electrotechnology and Telecommunications Trades Workers 39,794 29,292 37,331 -8,039 78.47% 
35 - Food Trades Workers 3,155 4,024 6,427 -2,403 62.61% 
36 - Skilled Animal and Horticultural Workers 300 1,290 300 990 430.00% 
39 - Other Technicians and Trades Workers 2,925 2,335 0 2,335 0.00% 
4 - COMMUNITY AND PERSONAL SERVICE WORKERS Total     95,755 84,557 108,898 -24,341 77.65% 

41 - Health and Welfare Support Workers 30,114 36,720 31,890 4,830 115.15% 
42 - Carers and Aides 46,180 32,473 64,761 -32,288 50.14% 
43 - Hospitality Workers 2,542 4,628 1,597 3,031 289.79% 
44 - Protective Service Workers 8,622 7,015 4,300 2,715 163.14% 
45 - Sports and Personal Service Workers 8,297 3,721 6,350 -2,629 58.60% 
5 - CLERICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE WORKERS Total     59,400 51,110 67,414 -16,304 75.82% 

51 - Office Managers and Program Administrators 15,915 18,075 18,744 -669 96.43% 
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ANZSCO Group 
2014 

Achieved 
2015 

Achieved 
2015 Target Var. % Achieved 

53 - General Clerical Workers 31,820 26,535 34,440 -7,905 77.05% 
55 - Numerical Clerks 6,795 4,895 8,488 -3,593 57.67% 
59 - Other Clerical and Administrative Workers 4,870 1,605 5,742 -4,137 27.95% 
 7 - MACHINERY OPERATORS AND DRIVERS Total     41,106 25,235 29,941 -4,706 84.28% 

71 - Machine and Stationary Plant Operators 28,974 15,133 21,490 -6,357 70.42% 
72 - Mobile Plant Operators 4,740 7,682 240 7,442 3200.83% 
74 - Storepersons 7,392 2,420 8,211 -5,791 29.47% 
 8 - LABOURERS Total     93,122 62,248 111,905 -49,657 55.63% 

82 - Construction and Mining Labourers 25,615 2,042 32,644 -30,602 6.26% 
83 - Factory Process Workers 16,159 18,067 24,375 -6,308 74.12% 
84 - Farm, Forestry and Garden Workers 17,728 19,514 15,495 4,019 125.94% 
85 - Food Preparation Assistants 13,713 7,496 13,712 -6,216 54.67% 
89 - Other Labourers 19,907 15,129 25,679 -10,550 58.92% 
 G - GENERAL EDUCATION Total     67,632 58,485 64,965 -6,480 90.03% 

GB - Adult Literacy/ESL 33,275 30,911 2,364 107.65% 
GE - General Education 67,632 25,210 34,054 -8,844 74.03% 
 TOTAL 586,575 453,996 600,000 -146,004 75.67% 

Non Profile Delivery 156,082 199,376 172,532 26,844 115.55% 

Institute Total Delivery 742,657 653,371 772,532 -119,161 84.57% 
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Profile Analysis for Pilbara Institute 

Definition: The table indicates delivery profile by major ANZCO 
groupings. The classification definitions are based on the skill 
level and specialisation usually necessary to perform the tasks 
of the specific occupation, or of most occupations in the group. 

Derivation: DPA data represents the actual achievement of SCH 
in respective years. Planned data is obtained from the DPA and 
actual SCH from the Institute Unified Enrolments System (UE).   

Variances in delivery by more than 10% are explained by the 
following reasons: 

Demand for training was less than expected because of the 
downturn in the resources sector, resulting in families moving 
away from the Pilbara. 

Planning for delivery continues to be a challenge in the Pilbara 
due to the strong economic drivers and constantly changing 
market demands. 

Profile Achievement (DPA) of 2015 Profile, Planned vs 

Achieved SCH 

This performance indicator shows the percentage of student 
curriculum hours (SCH) achieved for activities as contracted 
with the Department of Training and Workforce Development for 
vocational education and training delivery through the Delivery 
and Performance Agreement. 

Profile Achievement = Actual Delivery and Performance 
Agreement SCH Achieved/Target SCH contained within Delivery 
and Performance Agreement 

Table 4 
Planned Actual % Achieved 

2011 730,910* 772,939 106% 

2012 820,000 761,358 93% 

2013 813,500 680,614 83.66% 

2014 730,261 586,575 80.32% 

2015 600,000 453,996 75.67% 

Notes: Source: Pilbara Institute Delivery and Performance Agreement for planned SCH and 
Institute Management Information System for Actual SCH. Comments: Planned targets are based 
on the original DPA.   
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Efficiency Indicator 

Cost Per Student Curriculum Hour (SCH) 

This is a measure of the extent to which the Institute is able to 
efficiently use resources for the delivery of vocational 
education and training.  The overall cost per SCH is an 
efficiency measure that shows the aggregate unit cost of 
delivery output per SCH based on the delivery costs (Total 
Cost of Services) as detailed in the Financial Statements. 

Table 5 

2011 2012 2013 2014 
2015 

Target 

2015 

Actual 

Pilbara 
Institute $50.65 $51.04* 57.50** $61.28*** $61.71 $58.80**** 

Notes:  
Source: Financial Statements and Institute Management Information System.  
Derivation: The total delivery cost per SCH is calculated by dividing the total cost of services 
measured on an accrual basis by the total SCH delivered.  The total SCH is the total number of 
enrolments multiplied by the hourly duration of these modules as registered in the Institute 
Management Information System in accordance with the Australian Vocational Education and 
Training Management Information Statistical Standard. Delivery from all funding sources is 
included.  The total cost of services figure is obtained from the Annual Financial Statements.  
Comments: 
*The 2012 increase was due to non-achievement of SCH targets.
** The reason for the increase in cost per SCH for 2013 is non-achievement of SCH targets; 
higher employee benefit cost due to increase in Government Regional Officers Housing costs 
in 2013 and the 2013 Voluntary Severance Scheme payout.  
*** The 2014 increase was due to non-achievement of SCH targets as a result of lower demand 
for training. 
**** In 2015 the Institute restructured its operations reducing staff through voluntary severances 
and a reduction in the Government Regional Officers Housing costs resulting in a lower cost 
per SCH.   
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ANNUAL ESTIMATES 

In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 953, the annual estimates for the 2016 

year are hereby included in the 2015 Annual Report. These estimates do not form 

part of the 2015 financial statements and are not subject to audit.  
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PILBARA INSTITUTE
S40 SUBMISSION
Statement of Comprehensive Income

2016

Estimate
$

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23,401,197
Supplies and services 9,344,984
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,332,565
Grants and subsidies 59,852
Other expenses 1,210,089

Total Cost of Services 37,348,687

Income
Revenue
Fee for service 2,218,670
Student charges and fees 1,981,290
Ancillary trading 45,503
Interest revenue 198,641
Other revenue 1,116,718

Total Revenue 5,560,822

NET COST OF SERVICES 31,787,864

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

State funds 26,931,558
Resources received free of charge 493,378
Total income from State Government 27,424,936

DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD (4,362,929)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation reserve (682,500)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD (5,045,429)
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PILBARA INSTITUTE
S40 SUBMISSION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2016

Estimate
$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,867,675
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,023,566
Receivables 657,349
Other current assets 463,003
Total Current Assets 8,011,594

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 145,271,595
Intangible assets 4,750
Total Non-Current Assets 145,276,346
TOTAL ASSETS 153,287,940

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 1,048,603
Provisions 2,537,598
Other current liabilities 916,530
Total Current Liabilities 4,502,731

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 538,675
Total Non-Current Liabilities 538,675
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,041,406

NET ASSETS 148,246,534

EQUITY
Contributed Equity 63,840,938
Reserves 84,469,108
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) (63,512)

TOTAL EQUITY 148,246,534
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PILBARA INSTITUTE
S40 SUBMISSION
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2016

Estimate
$

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
State funds 26,730,768
Special purpose grant/cash transferred to DTWD (266,668)
Net cash provided by State Government 26,464,100

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits (23,217,723)
Supplies and services (8,842,106)
Grants and subsidies (59,852)
GST payments on purchases (864,789)
Other payments (1,194,787)

Receipts
Fee for service 2,211,273
Student fees and charges 1,969,611
Ancillary trading 45,503
Interest received 197,071
GST receipts on sales 264,672
GST receipts from taxation authority 336,938
Other receipts 1,117,053

Net cash used in operating activities (28,037,136)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of non-current physical assets (400,000)

Net cash used in investing activities (400,000)

Net decrease in cash held and cash equivalents (1,973,037)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 8,864,278

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 6,891,241
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PILBARA INSTITUTE
S40 SUBMISSION
CHANGES IN EQUITY STATEMENT

2016

Estimate
$

Balance of equity at start of period 124,180,911

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Balance at start of period 34,729,886
Capital contribution 31,177,720
Other contributions by owners 0
Distributions to owners (2,066,668)
Balance at end of period 63,840,938

RESERVES
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period 85,151,609
Changes in accounting policy or correction of prior period errors 0
Restated balance at start of period 85,151,609
Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation (682,500)
Balance at end of period 84,469,109

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)
Balance at start of period 4,299,416
Changes in accounting policy or correction of prior period errors 0
Restated balance at start of period 4,299,416
Surplus/(deficit) or profit/(loss) for the period (4,362,929)
Gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity 0
Balance at end of period (63,513)

Balance of equity at end of period 148,246,534

Total income and expense for the period (5,045,429)
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